

https://theses.gla.ac.uk/

Theses Digitisation:

https://www.gla.ac.uk/myglasgow/research/enlighten/theses/digitisation/

This is a digitised version of the original print thesis.

Copyright and moral rights for this work are retained by the author

A copy can be downloaded for personal non-commercial research or study, without prior permission or charge

This work cannot be reproduced or quoted extensively from without first obtaining permission in writing from the author

The content must not be changed in any way or sold commercially in any format or medium without the formal permission of the author

When referring to this work, full bibliographic details including the author, title, awarding institution and date of the thesis must be given

Enlighten: Theses <u>https://theses.gla.ac.uk/</u> research-enlighten@glasgow.ac.uk THE INVESTIGATION OF A NON-LINEAR DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION USING NUMERICAL METHODS

ALAN MORRIS CHRISTIE

ProQuest Number: 10656402

All rights reserved

INFORMATION TO ALL USERS

The quality of this reproduction is dependent upon the quality of the copy submitted.

In the unlikely event that the author did not send a complete manuscript and there are missing pages, these will be noted. Also, if material had to be removed, a note will indicate the deletion.



ProQuest 10656402

Published by ProQuest LLC (2017). Copyright of the Dissertation is held by the Author.

All rights reserved. This work is protected against unauthorized copying under Title 17, United States Code Microform Edition © ProQuest LLC.

> ProQuest LLC. 789 East Eisenhower Parkway P.O. Box 1346 Ann Arbor, MI 48106 – 1346

SUMMARY OF A THESIS SUBMITTED FOR THE M.Sc. IN COMPUTING BY ALAN M. CHRISTIE

THE INVESTIGATION OF A NON-LINEAR DIFFERENTIAL

EQUATION USING NUMERICAL METHODS

The equation investigated was

 $y'' + ay' + 100y = cy^2$

the parameters a and c being varied. The boundary conditions imposed upor the equation were

$$y(0) = 0, y(t_m) = 1$$

where t was the position of the first maximum after the origin. It was most fully investigated for a 20, this being the region in which the solutions wer exponentially decaying.

Although no analytic solution was discovered for the full equation, solutions were found when a = 0. By suitable transformations the solution for c > 0 was

$$y = (1-q) \sin^2 (M(t-t_0), k) + q$$

where M, t, k and q were constants. For c<0 the solution was

$$y = 1 - (1-q) \sin^2 (M(t-t_0), k)$$

These, as might be expected were periodic solutions. The four numerical methous used were

- (1) Finite Difference (2) Step-by-Step
- (3) Picards (4) Perturbation

The first two were purely numeric and the second two, semi-analytic.

The Finite Difference technique was used to find the solution between the boun ary values, and the Step-by-Step method then was used to integrate along the curve until the value of y dropped to 0.01. The initial conditions for this latter method were found from the Finite Difference solution. Picard's Method and Perturbation which were used over the whole region both gave solutions in terms of exponential series. This series was of the form

$$y = \sum_{r=0}^{N} \sum_{s=0}^{T} A_{rs} \exp(-(s \propto + (r-s)\beta)t)$$

where the A_{rs} is were constant coefficients and \checkmark and β were the exponents of t linear solution $y = A_{10}e^{\alpha t} + A_{01}e^{\beta t}$.

In all the methods except the Step-by-Step, the maximum had to be iterated onto by some means or another. In the Finite Difference method the secon point was adjusted until this condition had been satisfied. In the two semianalytic approaches, the coefficients were in effect, altered to suit the condition.

There was good agreement in results between the boundary conditions for all methods, but as might be expected for large values of c, the accuracy out side this region was not good, when the numerical methods were compared with the semi-analytic. This was due to the fact that the semi-analytic solutions were essentially solutions expanded about a point. In comparing the two numer: solutions when the Finite Difference method was used over the whole region, there was good agreement.

- 2 -

In investigating this problem, I would like to thank, besides others, the staff of the Computing Department, and, in particular, Dr. Gilles, whose help has been invaluable to me. I would also thank him for the use of his AITKENHOOT procedure which I used in one of my programmes.

+

.....

CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1 - Initial Investigation.	Page							
1.1 Introduction	1							
1.2 The linear equation y +ay+100y=0	2							
1.3 An analytic solution to $y''+100y=cy^2$	4							
1.4 Nature of solutions for different								
values of c	14							
CHAPTER 2 - Numerical Methods.								
2.1 Some preliminary methods investigated	18							
2.2 The Madelung Transformation	21							
2.3 Methods used for solution	22							
2.4 Finite Difference method	25							
2.5 Step-by-Step method	31							
2.6 Graph plotter	33							
2.7 Perturbation method	36							
2.8 Picards method	43							
CHAPTER 3 - Analysis of results.								
3.1 Methods of obtaining numerical results	54							
3.2 Comparison of solutions	55							
3.3 Conclusion	76							
APPENDIX 1 - Numerical results.								
APPENDIX 2 - References.								
APPENDIX 3 - Programmes.								

THE INVESTIGATION OF A NON-LINEAR DIFFERENTIAL EQUATION USING NUMERICAL METHODS

Chapter 1 - Initial Investigation

1.1. Introduction

Problems involving non-linear differential equations have been a studied for over 200 years now, principally in connection with estronomy. Over the last few decades, however, interest in these equations has increas rapidly due to the fact that problems arising from, for example, hydrodynem elasticity and mechanics often involve non-linear equations. The field has also gained impetus since the war from the building of high-speed computers which are able to solve numerically all classes of differential equations. It was using the KDF 9, an English Electric-Leo-Marconi computer with 16,00 words of storage, that the equation below was investigated. The equation was

$$\frac{d^2y}{dt^2} + \frac{a}{dt} \frac{dy}{dt} + 100y = cy^2$$
(1)

the parameters a and c being varied. The boundary conditions were :

$$y(0) = 0$$
 and $y(t_m) = 1$ (2)

t being the value of the abciess at the first maximum after the origin. For values of a greater than 20, there was only one maximum and for $0 \le \le <$ the solution was sinusoidal. No analytic solution was found for the complete non-linear equation, but when a was zero, an analytic solution was obtained. This was expressed, as in the solution of many non-linear equations, in terms of elliptic functions.

The methods of finding solutions for the complete equation were as follows :

- (a) Finite Difference (b) Step by Step
- (c) Perturbation (d) Picard's

All four methods used the computer to a greater or lesser extent. The first two methods were purely numerical while the latter two were semianalytic and produced a series approximation to the true solution.

1.2. The Linear Equation y" + ay' + 100 = 0

For values of <u>c</u> which make the equation highly non-linear, the solutions do not differ redically in shape from the solution of the linear equation (g = 0). It is therefore instructive to have a look at this equation. We have

$$\frac{d^2y}{dt^2} + a \frac{dy}{dt} + 100y = 0$$
(3)

For a > 20, the solution has the form

$$y = A_1 e^{-\alpha t} + B_1 e^{-\beta t}$$
(4)

where - x and - B are the roots of the equation

$$x^2 + ax + 100 = 0$$
 (5)

For values of a between zero and twenty the solution has the form

$$y = e^{-\delta t} (A_2 \sin t + B_2 \cos t)$$
 (6)

where j and j are the imaginary parts of the solution of (5) and - j is the real (negative) part.

Combining (4) with the first condition of (2) gives that

$$y(0) = A_1 + B_1 = 0$$
 i.e. $B_1 = -a_1$

From the second condition of (2) we have, since t_m is the position of a turning point, $y'(t_m) = 0$

$$\therefore y'(t_m) = \left[\frac{d}{dt} A, (\bar{e}^{\alpha t} - \bar{e}^{\beta t})\right]_{t=t_m} = -A, (\alpha \bar{e}^{\alpha t_m} - \beta \bar{e}^{\beta t_m}) = 0$$

$$\therefore \alpha/\beta = \exp[(\alpha - \beta)t_m]$$

$$\therefore t_m = \frac{1}{\alpha - \beta} \ln(\alpha/\beta)$$
(7)

Substituting this value back into the equation $y(t_m) = 1$ will give

$$A_{\lambda}\left\{\exp\left[\frac{-\alpha}{\alpha-\beta}\ln(\alpha/\beta)\right]-\exp\left[\frac{-\beta}{\alpha-\beta}\ln(\alpha/\beta)\right]\right\}=1$$
After some elgebra this gives

$$A_{i} = 1/\{k^{h/(k-1)} - k^{1/(k-1)}\}$$
 where $k = \alpha/\beta$ (8)

In a similar way it can be shown that with the same boundary conditions, the sinusoidal case (0 < a < 20) has the solution

$$y = A_z \bar{e}^{yt} sin \omega t$$
 where (9)

$$A_2 = \exp(\tan^2(k)/k)/\sin(\tan^2k)$$
, $k = 3/\omega = 3/3$

The solutions of the two cases are therefore similar to figures 1 and 2.



If $-20 < \underline{a} < 0$, then would be positive, and if $\underline{a} \leq -20$, then $-\alpha$ and $-\beta$ would be positive. Therefore for all cases $\underline{a} < 0$ there are positive exponentials and as $t \rightarrow \infty$, so will y. Therefore the cases $\underline{a} < 0$ were not investigated. The coefficient of y was given the value 100 so that for large \underline{a} i.e. of the orde 100, the initial gradient would be substantial (approximately 100 for $\underline{a} =$ 100) and interesting questions of accuracy would arise. For small values of \underline{a} i.e. $0 < \underline{a} < 20$, a repidly varying function of the type in figure 2 would result, and similar questions of accuracy would have to be investigated.

Of the methods used, only the numerical methods were applicable for all values of \underline{a} , the semi-analytic methods only being used for values of $\underline{a} > 20$ but because they involved considerably more algebra for their solution, it was decided only to touch on them.

1.3. An Analytic Solution to y" + 100y = cy²

In order to obtain some idea of the solution to the non-linear equation it was decided to investigate, analytically, as much as possible of it, and find out something of its nature. Although little was found enalytically about the full equation, by making a zero it was found to have, at least for some values of c, an analytic solution. For a=0 in the linear case the solution did not die away i.e. there was no 'frictional' term in the equation, and by investigating the non-linear equation with a=0, it looked as though this was also the case. This can be seen by an investigation of th phase curves i.e. a graph of y against dy/dt.

- 4 -

$$\frac{d^2y}{dt^2} = \frac{d}{dt} = \frac{d}{dy} \begin{pmatrix} v \end{pmatrix} \frac{dy}{dt} = \frac{d}{dy} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{dy}{dt} & \frac{dy}{dt} & \frac{dy}{dy} \end{pmatrix}$$

$$\frac{d^2y}{dt^2} + 100y = \frac{d}{dy} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{d}{2}v^2 \end{pmatrix} + 100y = \frac{d^2}{dy}$$

$$\frac{d^2y}{dt^2} + \frac{100}{2}y^2 = \frac{c}{3}y^3 + \text{constant}$$

$$\frac{v^2}{2} = \frac{2c}{3}y^3 = 100y^2 + \text{constant}$$

or

S

constant = 100 - 20/3

$$v^2 = \frac{20}{3} (y^3 - 1) = 100 (y^2 - 1)$$
 (10)

hava

àv2)

An insight can be geined into the solutions by plotting the phase curves for different values of <u>c</u>. Figure 3 shows these curves. In all cases the dotted circles represent the linear case. In actual fact, these are ellipses but the scales have been altered for donvenience.

Figure A shows the curve for $0 \le 0 \le 100$. As g gets larger, the stable part of the curve, which starts off as an ellipse at g=0, becomes distorted, and the unstable part of the curve (on the right hand side) approaches the value y=1 on the y-axis. The values of the function lying between y=1 and the unstable curve were found to be complex and hence there was real solution in this region. On integrating the function to give the full solution, the stable curves were found to be functions of the elliptic sin. No solutions, neither analytic nor numerical, were found for the unstable

If we let y a dy/dt then we



regions due to the lack of knowledge about their boundary conditions. For these curves, we know their minimum y values but we require enother boundary condition to define them uniquely. As this was not forth coming from the elliptic sin solution, there is a good chance that these unstable curves do not have any real existence in the fully integrated equation.

Figure B shows the intermediate case of c=100. This is the only case for c>0 where the two curves join. Since when the gradient is positive i.e. dy/dt>0, y must be increasing, the directions of this curve, as with the others, can only be as shown.

For values of c between 100 and 150, the stable loop contracts until at the value of 150, it disappears at the origin. The unstable part, however, for c > 100, remains and always goes through the point (1,0). For c > 150, the total integral curve consists solely of this line.

For negative values of c, phase curves similar to those for c > 0, emarge except that they are in the reverse direction and the stable loops enclose the ellipse rather than being enclosed by it. As can be seen, for $\underline{o} = -50$, the two distinct curves join, but unlike the case for $\underline{c} > 100$, they do not separate again, but open out to form an unstable path. The total phase diagram is shown in graph 1.

From equation (10) we have

$$\frac{dy}{dt}^{2} = \frac{20}{3} (y^{3}-1) - 100(y^{2}-1)$$

$$= (y-1) \left[\frac{20}{3} y^{2} + (\frac{20}{3} - 100)y + (\frac{20}{3} - 100) \right]$$

$$= \frac{20}{3} (y-1)(y-p)(y-q)$$
(11)

- 7 -



Graph 1

where p and q are the roots of the above quadratic i.e.

$$p, q = \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{150}{2} - 1 \right] + \frac{3}{2} \left[(50+0)(50-0/3) \right]$$
(12)

Thus t is given by

$$t = \sqrt{\frac{3}{20}} \int \frac{dy}{[(y-1)(y-p)(y-q)]} + constant$$
 (13)

This integral can only be evaluated using elliptic functions except for two special cases when a takes the values 100 and -50. In order to integrate the above, some properties of elliptic functions have to be known. The elliptic integral of the first kind is defined as

$$F(x,k) = \int_{0}^{x} \frac{dx}{[(1-x^{2})(1-k^{2}x^{2})]^{k}} , k^{2} < 1$$
 (14)

This is the only kind of elliptic integral involved in this problem

It is obvious that P(x,-k) = P(-x,k) = F(x,k).

If k = 0 then from the above integral

$$F(x,k) = F(x,0) = \sin^{-1}x$$

Generalising we have that

$$F(x,k) = en^{-1}(x,k) = u(sey).$$

x = sn(u,k).

Thus

If we make the substitution $x = \sin 0$ then (14) above becomes

$$F(\phi, k) = \int_{0}^{\phi} \frac{d\phi}{(1-k^{2}\sin^{2}\phi)^{k}}$$
(15)

From this we can define the other elliptic functions using their trigonometr: counterparts

$$\operatorname{sn}(u,k) = \sin \emptyset$$
, $\operatorname{cn}(u,k) = \cos \emptyset$,

$$dn(u,k) = (1-k^{2} \sin^{2} \emptyset)^{\frac{1}{2}}, \quad am(u,k) = \emptyset,$$

$$tn(u,k) = sn(u,k)/en(u,k) = tan \emptyset.$$
 (16)

Using suitable transformations, equation (13) can be transformed into equation (14) and hence the elliptic type solution.

For c> 0, we use the transformations

$$\frac{x^{2} = (y-q)/(1-q)}{k^{2} = (1-q)/(p-q)}$$

$$\frac{x^{2} = (p-q)/6}{k^{2} = c(p-q)/6}$$
(17)

From the above we have that 2z.dz = y/(1-q). Substituting (17) into (13) gives

$$t = \pm \frac{1}{M} \int \frac{dz}{[(1-z^2)(1-k^2z^2)]^{1/2}} + t_o$$

where t = constant.

,

$$(t-t_{o})M = t \int \frac{dz}{[(1-z^{2})(1-k^{2}z^{2})]^{V_{2}}}$$
(18)

From (14) and (16) it can be seen that the solution is therefore

 $z = sn(\frac{+}{-}M(t-t_{0}),k)$ (19)

Substituting y into this equation gives

$$y = (1-q) sn^{2} (\pm M(t-t_{0}), k) + q$$

= (1-q) sn^{2} (M(t-t_{0}), k) + q (20)

since sn(-x,k) = -sn(x,k).

To find the value of t, we have that y(0) = 0.

$$(21)$$

From the fact that P(x,k) = an⁻¹(x,k), we have

$$kt_{0} = -F(x,k)$$
(22)

The subiguity in sign can be explained from diagram A of figure 3. The initial conditions stipulate that y(0) = 0 but they do not say if the gradient at y(0) is positive or negative i.e. if the curve starts from the point \propto or β . If t is given a negative value then the curve starts at \propto and vice versa. Therefore t was given the negative value.

Since the transformation (17) is only applicable for positive \underline{c} we must find the equivalent for $\underline{c} < 0$. For this case

$$\frac{dy}{dt}^{2} = \frac{-20}{3} (1-y)(y-p)(y-q)$$
(23)

and the transformation becomes

(

$$x^{2} = (1-y)/(1-q)$$

$$x^{2} = (1-q)/(1-p)$$

$$m^{2} = 6/c (1-p)$$
(24)

In a similar way to $\underline{o} > 0$ we find that on substituting (24) into (23) gives the solution

$$y = 1 - (1-q) \sin^2(M(t-t_0),k)$$
 (25)

$$Mt_0 = \frac{1}{2} F(x,k), \quad x = \sqrt{\frac{1}{1-q}}$$
 (26)

If we desire the gradient at the origin to be positive in this

case we must take the positive value of t. The solutions for c = -40, 0 and +75 are shown in graph 2.

The solutions for c = 100 and -50 were found analytically without using elliptic integrals and it was found, surprisingly, that in these cases, the function took values greater than 1. These values correspond to the unstable arms of the phase diagram (graph 1) for the respective values of <u>c</u>. For <u>c</u> = 100 we have

$$\left(\frac{dy}{dt}\right)^{2} = (y-1) \left[\frac{20}{3} y^{2} + \left(\frac{2e}{3} - 100\right)y - \left(\frac{2e}{3} - 100\right)\right]$$
$$= \frac{100}{3} (y-1)^{2} (2y-1)$$
(27)

$$t = \frac{\sqrt{3}}{10} \int \frac{dy}{(y-1)(2y-1)} + constant$$
 (28)

Integrating with the boundary condition y(0) = 0 gives

$$t = \pm \frac{1}{10} \ln \left\{ \frac{\sqrt{2y+1} - \sqrt{3}}{\sqrt{2y+1} + \sqrt{3}} , \frac{\sqrt{3}+1}{\sqrt{3}-1} \right\}$$
(29)

For c = -50 we have

$$\left(\frac{dy}{dt}\right)^2 = \frac{-100}{3} (y-1)(y+2)^2$$
(30)

If we substitute z = -2y, then the above equation becomes the same as for c = 100. Thus the solution of (27) is

$$t = \frac{t}{10} \ln \left\{ \frac{\sqrt{1-2}}{\sqrt{1-2}}, \frac{\sqrt{3}+1}{\sqrt{3}}, \frac{\sqrt{3}+1}{\sqrt{3}-1} \right\}$$
(51)

Equation (29) is shown in graph (4). The shape of equation (31) can be



seen by substituting -2t for t in graph (4)

1.4. Nature of Solutions for Different Values of c

It is not possible to find solutions for all the integral curves in graph 1. If p and q are plotted against c. (graph 3), it can be seen that for $-50 \leq c \leq 150$ p and q have real values but otherwise they are complex.

As <u>c</u> tends to zero, p tends to plus or minus infinity depending upon the sign of <u>e</u> and q tends to -1. In this case k tends to zero and, as would be expected from the linear equation, a sinusoidal solution results Since $0 < k^2 < 1$ we have from (17)

i.e. (1-q) < (p-q) or p>1

Since $P = \frac{1}{2} \left[\left(\frac{150}{2} - 1 \right) + \frac{3}{2} \sqrt{(50 + c)(50 - \frac{5}{3})} \right] > 1$

we have
$$\frac{3}{2} \sqrt{50+c} (50-\frac{2}{3}) > 3-\frac{150}{c} = \frac{3}{c} (c-50)$$

for c> 50, we have after squaring both sides

$$(50 + e)(50 - e) > (e - 50)^2$$

$$\frac{40}{3}(c-100)<0 \quad i.e. \quad c<100 \tag{32}$$

It turned out that no solution for c > 100 was found. From the nature of the solution no values of y above 1 or below q were found



- 15 -

		1							1 and				The la	11		1
	hit the	Le La				· · · · · · · · ·	- LE			I let			T			
	A TES	1.12			1.	in the				el antico	12.1			I IT		
1		1.143		ALL B	a bit										Harris -	
													1	111		
		13 1.52														
		1														
		10.12	120115	1.2.1	K + k											
																1
	THE R.			1.5.7.8									1 and			
															1.12	
	1.157					-		alera.	1 Lat							1
				Tel:								P. Litting				
1.					i del con											1
	1.10	121.4		a den							1115	. 18				
		副作员							1.141							
h]	145			1 allein								1				1.1.1
	5.8	Def .				1 .41										
		L. H													1.1.1	
				1	1. 14			11.		NG.			1	11		
	hield".	1 the								1 . A A			/	11		1
		-1-												+-1		+
								1.1.1	1		-	/			1	11
0	de la .	r		2		12		4		N		57				6/
1.5.							and the state of t	Para - Image						-		1
				S								1.0				
		Ê. 12',		1. Said					1.11			-		D.	/	
												1			/	1
												/	7-	1-7	/	2
												/		1-7	/	
												/		1-7		
															/	
												/			/	
															/	

- 16

except for the exceptional cases $\underline{o} = -50$, 100. The shaded area of graph 3 shows the region investigated most fully. It was found, however, when the coefficient of y' was not zero but relatively large that the equation

$$y'' + 10Ly' + 100y = -100y^2$$
 (33)

yielded a numerical solution. As might be expected from the parameters on the left hand side of the equation, the solution was exponential in form and the large decay factor probably changed the nature of the solution sufficiently to make it real.

For <u>c</u> = 150, a colution which turned out to be complex, was found. We have

$$\left(\frac{dy}{dt}\right)^2 = (y-1) \left[\frac{2.150}{3} y^2 + \left(\frac{2.150}{3} - 100\right) y + \left(\frac{2.150}{3} - 100\right) \right]$$

= 100y² (y-1)

The solution to this is

$$t = \pm 2 \tan^{-1}(y-1)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \text{constant}$$
 (34)

Since the condition y(0) = 0 cannot be satisfied in the real plane, it would look as though this is not a real solution for the boundary conditions being used.

The question of solution for the unstable arms in the phase diagram was briefly discussed earlier on and on what evidence there was, there seemed to be not complete solution for these curves.

2.1. Some Preliminary Methods Investigated

In the initial analysis of the problem, several attempts at a series solution were tried. Attempts at substituting various forms of infinite series with unknown coefficients were investigated but, as shown below, these ran into difficulties due mainly to the boundary conditions imposed upon the equation

(1) The simplest form of solution tried was

$$y = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_r t^r$$
 (35)

Differentiating gives

$$y' = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_r r t^{r-1}$$

The first condition y(0) = 0 is easily satisfied by equation (35), but the second condition namely $y(t_m) = 1$ where t_m is the position of the first maximum is very awkward. For the maximum we have that $y'(t_m) = 0$.

$$y(t_{\rm m}) = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_r t_{\rm m}^r = 1$$
$$y'(t_{\rm m}) = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_r r t_{\rm m}^{r-1} = 0$$

Squaring y gives

$$y^{2} = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_{r}t^{r} \sum_{s=0}^{\infty} a_{s}t^{s} = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} \sum_{s=0}^{r} a_{s}a_{r-s}t^{r}$$

Differentiating y gives

$$y' = \sum_{\mathbf{r}=0}^{\infty} a_{\mathbf{r}} t^{\mathbf{r}-1}$$
$$y'' = \sum_{\tau=0}^{\infty} a_{\mathbf{r}} (\mathbf{r}-1) t^{\tau-2}$$

Substituting these into the equation gives

. .

$$\sum_{t=0}^{\infty} a_{t}, t'(\tau_{-1})t^{\tau_{-2}} + a \sum_{t=0}^{\infty} a_{r}, t, t^{\tau_{-1}} + b \sum_{t=0}^{\infty} a_{r}t^{\tau} = \sum_{t=0}^{\infty} \sum_{s=0}^{\tau} a_{s}a_{r-s}t^{\tau}$$

$$\sum_{t=0}^{\infty} \left[a_{r+2}(r+2)(r+1) + \alpha a_{r+1}^{(t+1)} + ba_{r} \right]t^{r} = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} \sum_{s=0}^{\tau} a_{s}a_{r-s}t^{\tau}$$
Equating powers of t gives
$$a_{r+1}(\tau+2)(\tau+1) + a_{r}a_{r+1}(\tau+1) + ba_{r} = \sum_{s=0}^{\tau} a_{s}a_{r-s}$$

$$\therefore a_{r+2} = \sum_{s=0}^{\tau} a_{s}a_{r-s} - a_{s}a_{r+1}(\tau+1) + ba_{r} \qquad (36)$$

Since y(0) = 0, a = 0. From the above we therefore have

$$a_2 = \frac{a_0^2 - 2aa_1 + ba_0}{2.1} = -a.a_1$$

It can be seen that since each coefficient is dependent on the two coefficients below it, all the coefficients can eventually be expressed in terms of a_1 . Since we have enother two equations from the initial conditions involving t_m and the coefficients, we can in theory find a_1 . Analytically, this would be very involved, but using numerical techniques, the value of a_1 could be found by iteration.

It was subsequently decided not to elaborate on this method, due to the fact that for large values of t, the error introduced into the corresponding y value would probably be considerable. For the exponentially decaying solution this would be especially noticeable since the function tends asymptotically to the t-axis.

(2) For the cases with the parameter a > 20, the linear equation has an exponentially decaying solution (see figure 1). Due to this fact, a solution of the form

$$y = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_r e^{-rt}$$
(37)

was attempted. Difficulties with the boundary conditions again arose. We have

$$\mathbf{y}(0) = \sum_{\mathbf{r}=0}^{\infty} \mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{r}} = 0$$

and

$$y(t_m) = \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} e_r e^{-rt_m} = 1, y'(t_m) = -\sum_{r=0}^{\infty} re_r e^{-rt_m} = 0$$

Differentiating equation (37) twice, we get, equating coefficients of e-rt

$$(r^2 - ar + b)a_r = \sum_{s=0}^{r} a_s a_{r=s}$$
 (38)

Since y tends to zero as t tends to infinity, the coefficient a must be zero.

For
$$r = 1$$
 $(1 - a + b)a_1 = 2a_0a_1$

$$a_0 = (1 - a + b)/2$$
 or $a_1 = 0$

In the first case a is non-zero and since a and b are arbitrary, this is incompatible with the fact that a = 0. If a is zero, the rest of

the coefficients in turn become zero and the solution y = 0 is incompatible with the non-homogeneous boundary conditions.

A generalisation of the above might be tried i.e.

$$y = \sum_{\tau=0}^{\infty} a_r e^{-\alpha_r t}$$
(39)

This would in theory work, but because of the number of unknowns to be evaluate and the difficulty of fitting the boundary conditions namely,

$$\sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_{r} = 0 \qquad \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_{r} \alpha_{r} = 0 \qquad \sum_{r=0}^{\infty} a_{r} e^{\alpha_{r} t_{m}} = 1 \qquad (40)$$

this method was abondoned.

The solution, as it was actually found, took the form

$$y = \sum_{ro}^{\infty} \sum_{s=0}^{r} a_{rs} \exp \left[- \left(S \alpha + (r-s) \beta \right) t \right]$$
(41)

where \propto and β were the roots of the equivalent linear equation. The methods used, however, did not tackle the problem by straight forward substitution as abovebut were derived from Picard's Method and Perturbation. In the above, 2 apart from the fact that y would be a quadruple summation, the boundary conditions again present difficulties.

2.2. The Madelung Transformation

Using the Madelung transformation, an attempt was made to isolate the exponentially decaying part of the sinusoidally varying solution. For this the function

$$y = F(t) \exp \left[i \int g(t) dt\right]$$
 (42)

is substituted into the equation, the real and imaginary parts being equated. Thus

$$y' = (F' + ig) \exp \left[i \int g(t)dt\right]$$
$$y'' = (F'' - g^{2} + i(g' + F'g)) \exp \left[i \int g(t)dt\right]$$

Substituting these into the equation gives

$$(F''-g)+i(g'+F'g)+a(F'+ig)+bF=cF^{2}exp[i]g(t)dt]$$

100. $(F''-g+aF'+bF)+i(F'g+g'+ag)=cF^{2}exp[i]g(t)dt]$ (43)

In the linear equations, the exponential can be eliminated throughout and two simultaneous equations explicit in F and g obtained. In this case, however, on the right hand side, the exponential cannot be eliminated although it could be expanded in the form

$$exp[i]g(t)dt] = \frac{1}{2} [sin {g(t)dt} - i cos {g(t)dt}]$$

Equating real and imaginary part of this would yield equations which are probably harder to solve than the original equation and therefore this idea was abondoned.

2.3. Methods Used for Solution

Of the four methods tried, two were numerical and two were semi-analytic. The numerical treatment involved a finite difference method and a step-by-step method. The first was used in order to fix the solution at the boundary points, and the step-by-step method, being quicker was then applied, using as its initial conditions two points found from the finite difference method. In figure (4) points A and B represent two points produced from the finite difference method to be used by the stepby-step method.





It was decided that a suitable place to stop the integration would be when y was 1% of its maximum value i.e. 0.01. If the finite difference method had been used to integrate the whole curve, a great deal of machine store would have been used. This is dat to the fact that great accuracy in the region from zero to B was required because of the considerable gradient at this part of the curve. This accuracy necessitated many points in the section. On the other hand, in the region from A onwards, the gradient was in comparison increasingly gentle, and for the same accuracy, the number of points required per unit length was much less. This difficulty could perhap have been overcome by varying the interval between points, the interval becoming larger for increasing y. Alternatively, the numerical method could have been modified to suit the initial conditions of A and B. This was thought of, but it soon became evident that without too much work, the process could be speeded up considerably by changing it to a non-iterative step-bystep process. It not only has the advantage of speed, but it takes considerably less storage. Because the finite difference method represents the differential equation as a set of simultaneous difference equations, the number of points must be known before the programme is run. In this way, it would be difficulty and certainly very inefficient to use this method in evaluating exactly up to y = 0.01. On the other hand, it is extremely easy to do this using the step-by-step process, since each point, as it is evaluated, is tested for the condition y = 0.01.

The two semi-analytic methods based on Picard's Method and Perturbation were methods in which solutions in terms of a series of exponentials for values of a > 20 and in terms of exponentials and trigonometric functions for a < 20, could be obtained. In both methods, the initial approximation taken was the solution for the linear case. The first non-linear approximatio in both methods was found without much calculation, but as might be expected, each succeeding new approximation demended an increase in work and gave a diminishing return.

In the two methods, the higher coefficients were calculated from lower coefficients. In Perturbation this calculation was done by hand, but in Picard's method this was automated and theoretically the solution could

- 24 -

be given in terms of any number of exponentials. In the former case, the accuracy was only that of the second non-linear approximation.

2.4. Finite Difference Method

In this method, the differential equation is represented as a finite difference equation. For a second order differential equation there will be two less difference equations than points being calculated, the rest of the information about the solution being given by the boundary conditions. For the equation y'' + ay + by = 0, the finite difference equation was derived as follows

$$\frac{dy}{dt} = \frac{\Delta y}{\Delta t} = \frac{y_{r+2} - y_{r-1}}{h}$$
(44)

where $y_{r+\frac{1}{2}}$ and $y_{r-\frac{1}{2}}$ are two consecutive values of the function separated by an interval $\Delta t = h$.

$$\frac{d^{2}y}{dt^{2}} = \Delta t \left(y_{\tau+1/2} - y_{\tau-1/2} \right) \times \frac{1}{h} = \left(\frac{y_{\tau+1} - 2y_{\tau} + y_{\tau-1}}{h^{2}} \right)$$
(45)

$$(\underbrace{y_{r_{+1}} - 2y_{r} + y_{r_{-1}}}_{h^{2}}) + \alpha(\underbrace{y_{r_{+1}} - y_{r_{-1}}}_{2h}) + by_{r} = 0$$

$$(1 - \frac{b}{2} \alpha)y_{r_{-1}} + (bh^{2} - 2)y_{r} + (1 + \frac{b}{2}\alpha)y_{r_{+1}} = 0$$

$$(46)$$

$$(47)$$

where a₁, a₂, a₃ are given from the equation above. For the non-linear equation, the finite difference equation therefore becomes

$$a_1 y_{r-1} + a_2 y_r + a_3 y_{r+1} = 0 y_r^2 b^2$$
 (40)

As in most methods of solving non-linear equations, the non-linear element must be linearized. This can be done in several ways. For example, if the non-linear term was u.v where u and v alone are linear functions, this could be linearized by writing

where \vec{u} and \vec{v} are the previous approximations found from the equation. Similarly y^2 can be linearised by making $y^2 - y \ge \vec{y}$ where the same convention holds. Although this is probably feater than letting the approximation be $y^2 - \vec{y} \ge \vec{y}$, it was not thought of at the time the programme was written, and the latter approximation was used.

Initially a value of y must be guessed. This was not too diffioult to do as the non-linear solutions were similar to the linear ones. In actual fact, because it was streightforward and iteration onto the final solution was generally good, a streight line was used as a first approximati to the purely exponential case. However, although this approximation was initially used for the sinusoidal cases, due to instabilities in certain of the equations, the solutions of the equivalent linear equations were subsequently used. Now that we know an approximation to y whether it be a straight line or otherwise, we substitute it into the right hand side of the finite difference equation. We thus obtain from equation (48)

(49)

The equations can be represented in matrix form as

AY = X

From the above, and the boundary conditions, the new values of y can be worked out. Each new set of values of the y_r 's are tested with the previous values \bar{y}_r and when $(y - \bar{y})$ for all points is less than some predetermined value, e.s. 10⁻⁴ then the results are obtained.

In most boundary problems, the value of the function is known

- 27 -

at two points say, in the above example y_1 and y_7 . Eliminating these from the simultaneous equations results in five equations in five unknowns. There is therefore, a unique value for each point. Since the boundary conditions were not so simple, another method of tackling the problem had to be found. In essence, the second point y_2 was varied until the first peak hit the value 1. If we let the point y_2 be x, then since we know that $y_1 = 0$, we have

° 3 ^y 3	$- cy_2^2 h^2 - a_2 x$
^a 2 ^y 3 ^{+ a} 3 ^y 4	$= cy_3^2 h^2 - a_1 x$
a1y3 + a2y4 + a3y5	$= c\bar{y}_4^2 h^2$
^a 1 ^y 4 + ^a 2 ^y 5 + ^a 3 ^y 6	$= cy_5^2 h^2$
^a 1 ^y 5 ^{+ a} 2 ^y 6 ^{+ a} 3 ^y 7	$= oy_6^2 h^2$

Thus

Inverting the matrix A will give the new values of y in terms of the old values which are known, and x which has to be found. We thus obtain

$$y_{3} = A_{3} - B_{3} \times y_{4} = A_{4} - B_{4} \times y_{5} = A_{5} - B_{5} \times y_{6} = A_{6} - B_{6} \times y_{7} = A_{7} - B_{7} \times y_{7}$$
(51)

where the A's are the elements of the inverse of A times the $cy^{-2}h^{2}$'s. The particular y which fitted the maximum could be found iteratively, but for reasons of speed a different method was used. Each y_r in turn was given the value one until one such y was found say y_p such that when $y_p = 1$, all other y's were less than one. The rest of the y's were of course calculated from the value of x derived from y_p . We have

$$y_{r} = A_{r} - B_{r}x = A_{r} - \frac{B_{r}}{B_{p}}(1 - A_{p})$$
 (52)

for all y 's.

To find the values of the A_r 's and B_r 's, it was not, in practice, necessary to invert the matrix A. As can be seen from equations (50) and (51) we can derive the following :

$$y_{3} = (c\bar{y}_{2}^{2}h^{2} - a_{2}x)/a_{3} = A_{3} - B_{3}x$$

$$y_{4} = (c\bar{y}_{3}h^{2} - a_{1}x)/a_{3} - a_{2}y_{3}/a_{3}$$

$$= (c\bar{y}_{3}^{2}h^{2} - a_{1}x)/a_{3} - a_{2}(c\bar{y}_{2}^{2}h^{2} - a_{2}x)/a_{3}^{2}$$

$$= c\left(\bar{y}_{3}^{2} - \frac{a_{2}}{a_{3}}\bar{y}_{2}^{2}\right)\frac{h^{2}}{a_{3}} - \left(\frac{a_{1}}{a_{3}} - \frac{a_{2}^{2}}{a_{3}^{2}}\right)x$$

$$= A_{4} - B_{4}x$$

- 29 -
For the rth equation

$$ay_{r_{1}} + a_{2}y_{r} + a_{3}y_{r_{1}} = c\overline{y}_{r}^{*}h$$

$$= (c\overline{y}_{r}^{2}h^{2} - a_{1}y_{r_{1}} - a_{2}y_{r})/a_{3}$$

$$= [(e\overline{y}_{r}^{2}h^{2} - a_{1}(A_{r_{1}} - B_{r_{1}}x) - a_{2}(A_{r} - B_{r}x)]/a_{3}$$

$$= (c\overline{y}_{r}^{*}h^{2} - a_{1}A_{r_{-1}} - a_{2}A_{r})/a_{3} + x(a_{1}B_{r_{-1}} + a_{2}B_{r})/a_{3}$$

$$= A_{r_{+1}} - B_{r_{+1}}x.$$
(53)

A5 and B5 can be found now in terms of A4, B4 and A3, B3. Similarly, each new constant can be found in terms of the two preceding ones.

Once the solution has been found to the required degree of accuracy in terms of previous approximations, a still more accurate result can be achieved by means of a difference correction. Using operators we have :

$$h^{2}y_{\tau}^{"} = (hD)^{2}y_{r} = (8^{2} - iz 8^{4} - i_{0} 8^{5} - \cdots) y_{r}$$

$$hy_{r}^{'} = (hD)y_{r} = (u8 - tm8^{3} + t_{0} 8^{5} - \cdots) y_{r}$$
(54)
where $8y_{r} = (y_{\tau+1/2} - y_{r-1/2})/h$ and $my_{r} = t(y_{r-1/2} + y_{r+1/2})$
The first term in each expansion gives respectively

 $s^{2}y_{r} = (y_{r-1} - 2y_{r} + y_{r+1})/2h$ $M \delta y_{r} = M (y_{r+1/2} - y_{r-1/2})/h = (y_{r+1} - y_{r-1})/2h$ (55)

and these are the terms which have previously been used to find the appropriate solution. A better solution is therefore given by the equation

$$a_1 y_{r_4} + a_2 y_r + a_3 y_{r_1} = c y_r^2 h^2 + t (\mu \delta^3 + \pm \delta^4 - t \mu \delta^5 - i \pm \delta^4 +)y_r$$
 (56)
The tebulated values of y are therefore differenced six times, the
difference correction calculated from the above, and then added to the

previous approximation of the right hand side.

In the program, it was found that for certain values of the interval, a₁ or a₂ might become zero, in which case the program would fail. In this case, the interval was altered and the calculation restarted.

The flow diagram, figure (5), shows how the programme for the finite difference method works. The figure n represents the number of different equations to be solved by varying the parameters a end c. The diagram follows more or less the theory which has just been explained. Initially q = 0, but when a sufficient degree of accuracy has been attained, the difference correction is calculated, and q becomes 1. With the new values of the right hand side of the difference equations, the final y values are calculated and the values of y output. The test for x > 1 was inserted because it was found that for values of a close to zero, the solution diverged. More will be said about this in the final chapter.

2.5. Step-by-Step Method

One ce the solution between the boundary conditions had been found the rest of the y values were calculated numerically to y = 0.1 using the step-by-step process. The problem was now essentially one of the initial value type, the two initial values being taken from the solution of the bounds type problem. If the equation is

$$y'' + ay' + by = cy^2$$

then as before, the corresponding difference equation is

$$a_{1}y_{\tau-1} + a_{2}y_{r} + a_{3}y_{\tau+1} = cy_{r}^{2}h^{2}$$



Knowing y_1 and y_2 , we can calculate y_3 and by resubstitution of each successive point and the one previous into the equation, the next point in turn can be found. For the exponential-type solution, each new value was tested until y = 0.01 was found. For the sinusoidal solution, each maximum was found and the function value at these points was tested for 0.01 Once found, the values of y were output. The flow diagram for the calculation is shown in figure (6).

As in the previous flow diagram, n represents the number of sets of parameters input. In the sotual programme, the smount of storage used was much more than was absolutely essential. The reason for this was that both in this programme and the finite difference programme, an optional graph plotter in the form of a procedure was used. This meant that y and t values had to be stored in two vectors and could not be output immediately after the y values had been calculated. For the most economical use of storage, only the two previous values of y need be kept. The graph plotter is described below.

2.6. The Graph Plotter

This graph plotter gave a scaled digitalised form of graph suitable for output on a line printer of flexowriter. It plotted out points, but because these could only be printed at integer places, it was not particularly accurate. The points were scaled so that the difference between the maximum and minimum point across the page was 100 spaces. The length of

- 33 -



Figure 6



the graph down the page was left to be scaled by the user. The method was as follows.

If the coordinates are represented by an X vector across the page and Y vector down the page, then the maximum and minimum values in the X array are found and the X values are all scaled by 100 over the difference of these two. This, in effect, brought all the X values within the breadth of the page. A similar technique scaled the Y array down the page by inputing the number of carriage returns desired. In order to make all the X values positive, the lowest number in the X array was subtracted from all other X values. This prevented meaningless negative spaces from being calculated.

Since there can only be an integer number of spaces across the page and carriage returns down the page, the values of the adjusted points had to be rounded off to the nearest whole number. The elements of the Y array then had to be arranged in decreasing order of magnitude so that as the page moved up, the highest values in Y were at the top of the page (see figure (7)). The corresponding X values were at the same time arranged in the same order as the new Y array.

X values 0 0 0 0 0 0 ô values decreasin ٥ 0 c 0 000 0 0 0 ۵ 0 0 figure 7. C

- 35 -

If it happened that two or more 'integerized' Y values were the same, then the corresponding X values had to be rearranged in increasing order of magnitude. If it also happened that two of these newly rearranged X values were the same, then obviously one had to be eliminated. For this case, a counter was set up which, after the graph had been drawn, output the number of points ignored.

In the initial version of the programme, the appropriate coordinates for X and Y were output across and down the page respectively, but since the graph was only rough, and the accurate points were being output before the curve, it was decided to eliminate them. The flow diagram for the programme is shown in figure (8) and an example of the output is shown in graphs (21) at the end of the book.

2.7. Perturbetion Nethod

For this method, a general solution in the form of a series of real or complex exponentials with real or complex coefficients, was found. Howeve for a < 20, the region in which complex constants arise, it would be a long and arduous task to extract the real sinusoidal solution. It was therefore decided to investigate the two cases, a < 20 and a > 20, separately.

For the equation $y'' + ay' + by = cy^2$, we assume that we can find a series expansion of the form

$$y = y_0 + cy_1 + c^2 y_2 + \cdots$$
 (57)

where y, y1, y2, etc. ere twice differential functions of t to be determined

- 36 -



. ..



Figure 8

Initially it was thought that the method would only apply for small values of c 1 i.e. c less then unity 1), but it was found in comparing the results of this method with the numerical methods, that to the degree of accuracy the solution was taken, reasonably satisfactory results were obtained at least between the boundary conditions, for larger values of c. This suggests that the values of higher order y terms fall off quicker than the coefficients in c increase.

We also let

$$b = b_0 + cb_1 + c^2b_2 + \cdots$$
 (58)

where b, b, b, etc. are also to be determined. Since y(0) = 0 we let

$$y_0(0) = y_1(0) = y_2(0) = 0$$
 (59)

For the second boundary condition we have $y(t_m) = 1$. As it stands, this condition could not easily be incorporated into the calculation. We there fore have to convert the problem into an initial value one by adjusting the gradient by iterative means until $y(t_m)$ hits the value 1. For this condition we take

$$y'_{0}(0) = y'(0), y'_{1}(0) = y'_{2}(0) = \dots = 0$$
 (60)

By squaring y, we have

$$y^{2} = (y_{0} + cy_{1} + c^{2}y_{2} + \cdots) = y_{1}^{2} + c(2y_{0}y_{1}) + c^{2}(2y_{0}y_{2} + y_{1}^{2}) + \cdots$$

Differentiating and substituting into equation (1) we have

$$(y_{*}^{*} + cy_{*}^{*} + c^{2}y_{*}^{*}) + a(y_{*}^{*} + cy_{*}^{*} + c^{2}y_{*}^{*}) + (y_{*}^{*} + cy_{*}^{*} + c^{2}y_{*}^{*}) + (y_{*}^{*} + cy_{*}^{*} + c^{2}y_{*}^{*}) + (61)$$

$$= cy_{*}^{*} + c^{2}(2y_{*}y_{*}) + c^{3}(2y_{*}y_{*}^{*} + y_{*}^{*}) + \cdots$$

We then equate powers of c. This gives the first approximation

$$y_0^{\prime\prime} + ay_0^{\prime} + b_0 y_0 = 0$$

This is just the linear equation, the solution of which is known i.e.

$$j_o = A \bar{e}^{\alpha t} + B \bar{e}^{\beta t} = A (\bar{e}^{\alpha t} - \bar{e}^{\beta t}) \quad (\text{since } y(0) = 0)$$

where

$$\alpha, \beta = (\alpha \mp \sqrt{\alpha^2 - 4 b_0})/2$$
If we let $A_0 = A$ then
 $y_0'(0) = A_0(\beta - \alpha)$

For the second approximation, equating c we have

$$y_{i}^{"} + a y_{i}^{'} + b_{0} y_{i} + b_{1} y_{0} = y_{0}^{2}$$

$$: y_{i}^{"} + a y_{i}^{'} + b_{0} y_{i} = y_{0}^{2} - b_{1} y_{0}$$

$$= A_{0}^{2} (e^{2x+2} + 2e^{(x+\beta)t} + e^{\beta t}) - b_{1} A_{0} (e^{x+2} + e^{\beta t}) (62)$$

Since $e^{-\chi t}$ and $e^{-\beta t}$ are both solutions of the complementary function and this equation is linear, it follows that b_1 must be zero. For the particular integral, we therefore let

$$y_{i} = B_{o}e^{-2\alpha t} + C_{o}e^{(\alpha+\beta)t} + D_{o}e^{2\beta t}$$
(63)

Differentiating this twice, substituting it into the left hand side of (62), and equating coefficients of the exponentials gives

$$B_{0}(4\alpha^{2} - 2\alpha\alpha + b_{0}) = A_{0}^{2}$$

$$C_{0}((\alpha(+\beta)^{2} - \alpha(\alpha+\beta) + b_{0}) = -2A_{0}^{2}$$

$$D_{0}(4\beta^{2} - 2\alpha\beta + b_{0}) = A_{0}^{2}$$
(64)

Thus B, C, and D can be found in terms of A. The full solution is thus of the form

$$y_{i} = A_{i} e^{\alpha t} + B_{i} e^{\beta t} + B_{o} e^{2\alpha t} + C_{o} e^{\alpha t} + D_{o} e^{2\beta t}$$

Since y1(0) = 0 we have

$$A_1 + B_1 + B_2 + C_2 + D_3 = 0$$

since y'(0) = 0 we have

$$-(\alpha A_1 + \beta B_1 + 2\alpha B_0 + (d+\beta)C_0 + 2\beta D_0) = 0$$

The only coefficients not known in terms of A are A and B. From the above equations we therefore obtain

$$A_{1} = -\left[\left(B_{0} + C_{0} + D_{0}\right)\beta - 2B_{0}\alpha - C_{0}(\alpha + \beta) - 2D_{0}\beta\right]/(\beta - \alpha)$$

$$B_{1} = \left[\left(B_{0} + C_{0} + D_{0}\right)\alpha - 2B_{0}\alpha - C_{0}(\alpha + \beta) - 2D_{0}\beta\right]/(\beta - \alpha) \quad (65)$$

For the third, and in this discussion final, approximation we have by equating the coefficients of c^2

$$y_2^{"} + ay_2^{'} + (b_0 y_2 + b_1y_1 + b_2y_0) = 2y_0y_1$$
 (66)

 $y''_{2} + ay'_{2} + by_{2} = 2y_{0}y_{1} - b_{2}y_{0}$ since $b_{1} = 0$ Using a similar argument, it can be shown that b_{2} will be zero. Hence

$$y''_2 + ay'_2 + b_0 y_2 = 2A_0(e^{\alpha t} - e^{\beta t})(A_1e^{\alpha t} + B_1e^{\alpha t} + B_0e^{-2\alpha t} + C_0e^{-(\alpha tB)t} + D_0e^{-2\beta t})$$

Using the same method as in the second approximation, we find that the values of the coefficients of the exponentials

$$e^{-2\alpha t}$$
, $e^{-(\alpha+\beta)t}$, $e^{-2\beta t}$, $e^{-3\alpha t}$, $e^{-(2\alpha+\beta)t}$, $e^{-(\alpha+2\beta)t}$, $e^{-3\beta t}$

are respectively given by the identities

$$F_{2}(4\alpha^{2} - 2a\alpha + b_{o}) = 2A_{o}A_{i}$$

$$B_{2}((\alpha+\beta)^{2} - a(\alpha+\beta) + b_{o}) = 2A_{o}(B_{i}-A_{i})$$

$$C_{2}(4\beta^{2} - 2\alpha\beta + b_{o}) = -2A_{o}B_{i}$$

$$D_{2}(9\alpha^{2} - 3\alpha\alpha + b_{o}) = 2A_{o}B_{o}$$

$$F_{2}((2\alpha+\beta)^{2} - a(2\alpha+\beta) + b_{o}) = 2A_{o}(C_{o}-B_{o})$$

$$F_{2}((\alpha+2\beta)^{2} - \alpha(d+2\beta) + b_{o}) = 2A_{o}(D_{o}-C_{o})$$

$$F_{2}((\alpha+\beta)^{2} - 3\alpha\beta + b_{o}) = -2A_{o}D_{o}$$
(67)

Thus the total solution will be

$$y_2 = A_3 \bar{e}^{\alpha t} + B_3 \bar{e}^{\beta t} + A_2 \bar{e}^{2\alpha t} + B_2 \bar{e}^{(\alpha + \beta)t} + C_2 \bar{e}^{2\beta t}$$

 $+ D_2 \bar{e}^{3\alpha t} + E_2 \bar{e}^{(2\alpha + \beta)t} + F_2 \bar{e}^{(\alpha + 2\beta)t} + G_2 \bar{e}^{3\beta t}$ (68)

Again using the initial conditions $y_2(0) = 0$ and $y_2'(0) = 0$ we can find the values of A_3 and B_3 in terms of the other coefficients. These turn out to be

$$A_{3} = -\left[\beta(A_{2}+B_{2}+C_{2}+D_{2}+E_{2}+F_{2}+G_{2})-2\alpha A_{2}-(\alpha+\beta)B_{2} - 2\beta C_{2}-3\alpha D_{2}-(2\alpha+\beta)E_{2}-(\alpha+2\beta)F_{2}-3\beta G_{2}\right]/(\beta-\alpha)$$

$$B_{3} = \left[\alpha(A_{2}+B_{2}+C_{2}+D_{2}+E_{2}+F_{2}+G_{2})-2\alpha A_{2}-(\alpha+\beta)B_{2} - 2\beta C_{2}-3\alpha D_{2}-(2\alpha+\beta)E_{2}-(\alpha+2\beta)F_{2}-3\beta G_{2}\right]/(\beta-\alpha)$$

$$(69)$$

For this degree of approximation we find that the total solution is given by

$$\begin{aligned} y = y_{o} + cy_{i} + c^{2}y_{2} \\ = A_{o}(\bar{e}^{\alpha t} - \bar{e}^{\beta t}) + c(A_{i}\bar{e}^{\alpha t} + B_{i}\bar{e}^{\beta t} + B_{o}\bar{e}^{2\alpha t} + c_{o}\bar{e}^{(\alpha+\beta)t} \\ + D_{o}\bar{e}^{2\beta t} + c^{2}(A_{3}\bar{e}^{\alpha t} + B_{3}\bar{e}^{\beta t} + A_{2}\bar{e}^{2\alpha t} + B_{2}\bar{e}^{(\alpha+\beta)t} + C_{2}\bar{e}^{2\beta t} \\ + D_{2}\bar{e}^{3\alpha t} + E_{2}\bar{e}^{\beta\alpha+\beta}t + F_{2}\bar{e}^{(\alpha+2\beta)t} + G_{2}\bar{e}^{3\beta t}) \\ = (A_{o} + cA_{i} + c^{2}A_{3})\bar{e}^{\alpha t} + (-A_{o} + cB_{i} + c^{2}B_{3})\bar{e}^{\beta t} + c(B_{o} + cA_{2})\bar{e}^{2\alpha t} \\ + c(C_{o} + cB_{2})\bar{e}^{(\alpha+\beta)t} + c(D_{o} + cC_{2})\bar{e}^{2\alpha t} + c^{2}D_{2}\bar{e}^{3\alpha t} \\ + c^{2}E_{2}\bar{e}^{(2\alpha+\beta)t} + c^{2}F_{2}\bar{e}^{(\alpha+2\beta)t} + c^{2}G_{2}\bar{e}^{3\beta t} \end{aligned}$$
(70)

Thus the non-linear equation is each time being reduced to a linear equation with the boundary conditions always being satisfied.

The above solution is the general one discussed previously. For exponential-type solutions, it stends as it is, but for sinusoidal solutions it must be broken down into its real and imaginary parts. For calculating the real parts of the appropriate constants on a computer with complex facility, this might be a reasonable proposition, but by hand the problem would be rather involved. It was also found to be a much more time consuming problem to work out a reasonably accurate solution for the sinusoidal $y = Ae^{-bt} \sin \omega t$. Since this was also the case for the other semi-analytic method investigated, and as in neither method was there a significant difference in the theory it was decided to investigate the purely exponential solutions only, and leave the sinusoidal.

Now that we know the solution in terms of A which is a function of the gradient, we can work out iteratively its value. First of all, an initial guess was obtained for A by using its linear value. Using this the maximum value of y was found and if this was greater than unity, the gradient was proportionately reduced.



The reverse was done if the meximum was greater. This is shown in figure (9). In effect, the gradient was changed by (1 - diff) where 'diff' was the difference between the maximum and one.

The programme was such that for each iteration, only those points up to and including the maximum were calculated. This means that all points after the maximum were ignored until the required degree of accuracy had been reached when every point was calculated with the final value of the coefficien The flow diagram is shown in figure (10).

2.8. Picard's Method

This method is similar to Perturbation in that it produces an exponential series, but each successive approximation gives a greater number of terms to the expansion than in Perturbation. Essentially, an approximate solution was found from the linear equation, say $f_0(t)$. This solution is substituted into the non-linear part of the equation giving

$$y'' + ay' + by = cf_0^2(t)$$



This equation is a better linear approximation to the non-linear equation being investigated, and we solve it with the boundary conditions to find the new solution $f_1(t)$. This is substituted into the equation as before and the process is repeated until the required degree of approximation is reached.

We have that the solution of the linear equation

$$y'' + ay' + by = 0$$
 is $y = A_{0}e^{at} + A_{0}e^{bt}$

Squaring this and substituting it into the right hand side of the equation gives

$$y'' + ay' + by = c(A_{10}^2 \bar{e}^{2\alpha t} + 2A_{10} A_{01} \bar{e}^{(\alpha + \beta)t} + A_{01}^2 \bar{e}^{(\beta + \beta)t})$$
 (71)

For the particular integral, we let the solution be

$$y = A_{20} \bar{e}^{2\alpha t} + A_{11} \bar{e}^{(\alpha + \beta)t} + A_{02} \bar{e}^{-2\beta t}$$
(72)

where a_{20} , A_{11} and A_{02} are to be determined. As can be seen, the suffices of the coefficients correspond to the appropriate powers in α and β . Differentiating equation (72) twice and substituting the resultant values of y" and y' into the left hand side of equation (71) gives, by equating the coefficients of the exponentials, the values of A_{20} , A_{11} and A_{02} in terms of A_{10} and A_{01} .

the first approximate equation is

$$y = A_{10} e^{\alpha t} + A_{01} e^{\beta t} + A_{20} e^{\beta t} + A_{11} e^{(\alpha + \beta)t} + A_{02} e^{\beta t}$$
(73)
$$A_{10} e^{\alpha t} + A_{01} e^{\beta t} \text{ being the solution of the complementary function}.$$

From the boundary conditions A_{10}^{\prime} and A_{01}^{\prime} can be found. From the condition y(0) = 0, we have

$$A_{10} + A_{01} + A_{20} + A_{11} + A_{02} = 0$$
 (74)

Thus A'_{01} can be found in terms of A'_{10} . The other condition, $y(t_m) = 1$ uniquely determines the value of A'_{10} , but as in the previous method, A'_{10} can only be found with relative case using an iterative technique.

Once this approximate solution has been found, we start off eacin knowing the coefficients from A_{10}^{*} to A_{20}^{*} and square equation (73). The same process is repeated and the coefficients of the exponentials from $\overline{e}^{\alpha t}$ to \overline{e}^{2} are re-evaluated and the coefficients of $e^{-3} \propto t$ to e^{-4} (5 t are evaluated.

This can be repeated to give the solution to any number of exponentials. The problem of iteration for the second boundary condition turned out to be more difficult than in Perturbation. Initially, the same method was used, i.e. if the maximum value of y turned out to be below 1 for a particular set of coefficients, the gradient was increased, the coefficients re-evaluated and the maximum value of y egain found. This was done, as previously, through modifying the gradient by (1-diff), 'diff' being the difference between y_{max} and 1. It worked quite satisfactorily for positive values of the non-linear coefficient to the order of 75, but for values about -40, the process did not converge. In general it was found that it took longer to find the solution for negative values of c than for their equivalent positive values. This maybe due to the following. For the value of y at t_m , y' = 0, and approximately

$$y'' = -(100 - \alpha y)y$$
 ($y \simeq 1$) (75)

When c is negative, the coefficient of y is much larger than when c has the equivalent positive value. Thus the value of y at the maximum is much more rapidly varying for this case, and accuracy will consequently be more difficult to achieve. This fact can be seen from the shape of any graph with c = -40. The peak for this is much sharper than for positive c. For the cases with negative c which did work, it was found that it took more iterations than was thought necessary (sometimes more than 20). It was found, for values of c about -40, that although the solution did not converge, neither did it diverge rapidly. The maximum value of y seemed to fluctuate between 0.73 and 1.2 for a large number of iterations. To reduce the amount of 'feedback' from the difference to the gradient, various functions similar to tan⁻¹ (diff) we tried. This, in effect, would reduce the magnitude of the gradient correcting factor for large values of diff, but leave smaller values relatively unchanged (tan⁻¹ $x \simeq x$ for $x \ll 1$).

Ultimately an empirical formula was found which gave the solution for c = -40, but the number of iterations required made the method very impracticable. Hence another method of iteration was looked for. Using Aitken's inverse interpolation, the process was found to converge much faster.

AITKENROOT Procedure

Interpolation was carried out between diff and the coefficient of the first exponential A_{10} and the value of A_{10} was found such that diff was close enough to zero and that the boundary condition y(0) = 0 was satisfied. This

did not involve calculating the gradient for each iteration as was done in Perturbation. When diff was less than zero, the value of the coefficient was increased by as many increments as was necessary to make diff positive. When the sign change occurred, Aitken's interpolation was used to find the value of A_{10} such that diff=0. If diff was originally greater than zero, A_{10} was decreased. In figure (11) a represents the value of diff for a particular value of A_{10} . If we decrease the value of A_{10} enough, eventually diff will go negative



Interpolating linearly between those two points gives a more accurate value to A_{10} . With this new value, A_{01} is receloulated and $A_{01}e^{e^{t}}$, with the rest of the terms of the series, gives the new value of diff corresponding to the new A_{10} . This diff now corresponds to the point e_3 . Linearly interpolating between e_1 and e_3 gives e_4 , and applying the same to e_3 and e_4 produces, in stable cases, the most accurate approximation so for $-e_5$. Generally, if the interpolation is ill-behaved, any instabilities which occur, will do so when the point e_5 is being calculated. Although in this method, interpolation is always being carried out just between two points, in effect, n^{th} order interpolation is achieved by successive interpolation between the correct points.

Current Value	Derivation		
of $A_{10} (= f)$			
^r 1	initial value		
f2,f2=f12	f ₁₂ from f ₁ +f ₂		
f3*f3*=f13*=f23	f13 from f1+f3		
	f ₂₃ from f ₂ +f ₃		
	f14 from f1+f4		
f4*f4*=f14	f24 from f2+f4		
f4:=f24,f4:=f34	f34 from f3+f4		

figure 12

From the two points f_1 and $f_2 (\equiv a_1 \text{ and } a_2)$ a third point $f_{12} (\equiv a_3)$, is calculated. This is the new f_2 and it replaces the old value of f_2 . It is also the first approximation to the calculation of f_3 . The second approximat to f_3 is calculated from f_1 and f_3 . This new value f_{13} replaces the old value of f_3 to become the next approximation. Interpolation between this and the point f_2 gives f_{23} which in turn becomes the final f_3 . Using this as a first approximation to f_4 , the same sequence of events is carried out to find the the most accurate to 4th degree interpolation. This is continued until two successive approximations f_{r-1} and f_r are close enough such that the error between them can be neglected. Thus the final value of A_{10} is found and the solution to the required degree of accuracy is obtained.

Since only current values of f_1 , onwards are stored, intermediate points being overwritten by new approximations, the amount of storage for this application of Aitken's interpolation is small compared with more conventional approaches.

Calculation of Coefficients

In Picard's Method, it was decided to calculate the coefficients inside a procedure rather than by hand as is Perturbation. The procedure (CONST) evaluated the coefficients for the new terms and re-calculated the old coefficients from A₂₀ up to the start of the new terms.

For the first non-linear approximation, A_{20} , A_{11} and A_{02} were calculated from A_{10} and A_{01} . Since each new approximation is found by squaring the previous solution, the number of terms rises very rapidly. For the first, second and third approximations we have respectively 5, 14 and 44 terms in the series.

From the first approximation, we have, squaring equation (73)

$$y^{2} = (A_{10} e^{-\alpha t} + A_{10} e^{-\beta t} + A_{20} e^{-2\alpha t} + A_{11} e^{(\alpha+\beta)t} + A_{02} e^{2(\beta t)^{2}}$$
(76)

When multiplied out this gives exponential terms from $e^{-2\times t}$ through all variations up to $e^{-4} e^{t}$. For the right hand side of the equation we substitute

$$y = A_{20}^{*} e^{-2\kappa t} + \dots A_{04}^{*} e^{-4\beta t}$$
 (77)

Differentiating twice and substituting the value of y", y' and y into the left hand side of the equation will give an exponential series from $e^{-2\times t}$ to $e^{-4\beta t}$ with respective coefficients from A_{20}^{*} to A_{04}^{*} . Equating coefficients will give A_{20}^{*} to A_{04}^{*} in terms of A_{10}^{*} to A_{02}^{*} and d and \Diamond . The main part of the procedure squares the series which was the previous approximation (see equation (76)). If we have that a term of the new series of equation (77) is $A_{13}^{*} d^{-(r \times + 5)/2}$ then for this we have that

- 51 -

$$y'' + ay' + by = A'_{re} ((r\alpha + a\beta)^2 - a(r\alpha + a\beta) + b)\bar{a}(r\alpha + a\beta)t$$

Thus to find the new coefficient a_{rs}^* , we must divide the coefficient of $e^{(r \propto + s \ \beta)t}$ from equation (76) by $((r \propto + s \ \beta)^2 - a(r \ \alpha + s \ \beta) + b)/c$. The latter part of the procedure does this. The diagram below shows how the process was programmed.

figure (13).

The coefficients in, for example, the third group of the above are calculated solely from the first two groups and the coefficients A_{10} and A_{01} . For example A_{34} is found as below

$$A_{34} = 2A_{30} A_{04} + 2A_{21} A_{13} + 2A_{31} A_{03} + 2A_{12} A_{22}$$

Thus the coefficient A₃₄ is formed from allcombinations of coefficients whose suffices add up to 3 and 4 from the two previous groups. This process lends itself quite well to being programmed.

Figure (14) shows the flow diagram for the whole programme.



- 77 -

Figure 14

de.



CHAPTER 3 - ANALYSIS OF RESULTS

3.1. Method of Obtaining Numerical Results

Because of the boundary conditions, and the fact that the integration was to be carried along until y was less than 0.01, the programmes were used in a definite order. To find the approximate position of the maximum so that the Finite Difference programme could be used, a modification was made in the Perturbation programme such that it output the approximate value of t_m and nothing else. Once this position had been found, the Finite Difference programme was used to find the solution between the boundary conditions. Next, the Step-by-Step programme, with initial conditions given by the previous programme, found the solution to the point y = 0.01. Having found the upper limit to the integration, the two semi-analytic methods were used.

Due to the fact that the gradient before the maximum was much greater than that after it, it was decided in Picard's method and Perturbation to output a greater density of points for the first part of the curve than the second part. In both programmes a facility was available for outputing every nth point (where n could be varied) after the maximum rather than every point.

In order to compare the results of the numerical methods with these of the semi-analytic, exponential solutions were obtained for variations of the parameters <u>a</u> and <u>c</u>. These are as below.

Values	of	8	*	25,	50,	75,	101
Values	of	C		-40,	0,	50,	75

- 54 -

The parameter c was given the value -20 as well, but because the solution for -40 was relatively close to the linear case, it was not analysed fully.

3.2. Comparison of Solutions

The results for a combination of the two numerical methods are shown on graphs 5 to 8. They are arranged so that variations in the values of <u>c</u> appear for constant values of <u>a</u> on the same graph. For negative values of <u>c</u>, the function rises quicker and falls quicker than for the linear case, the opposite being true for values of c > 0. As might be expected from a c mparison of the linear colutions in which <u>a</u> is varied, the larger the value of *a*, the steeper the rise and fall of the function. Because of the very fast rise of most of the solutions, any function values taken from the graph would be highly inaccurate.

It was found, rather unfortunately, that the Finite Difference method failed for values of a close to zero. This meant that no direct comparison could be made between the numerical solutions and the analytic. Solutions were found for a greater than or approximately equal to 5 for some values of c (as can be seen in the example of the graph plotter procedure, graph (21), a = 5, c = -40), but with this amount of damping, the solution was altered to such an extent that it was felt that no accurate comparison could be made between this and the equivalent undemped case. However, both in the analytic solutions and the numerical, the order in which the maxime came for increasing c values was the same.

- 55 -





- 51 -



- 58 -



The reason for the instability was not found, although one possibility might be that of higher frequency terms dominating the solution. In the reasonably damped solutions these terms would probably be coupled to large exponentials which would effectively eliminate them. For this theor a crude interval was tried but with no success. A very small interval was also attempted, but with the same result.

To test the relative accuracy of the two numerical methods, solution using the Finite Difference method were found for two sets of parameters for the whole length of the curve. These were compared with the appropriate solutions found from the Step-by-Step programme, and the difference between the two was never greater than one point out in the 4th Decimal place. This could be improved either by using a smaller interval or by adding a difference correction to the Step process.

Because the position of the points after the maxima in the numerical methods, often did not correspond to the position of the points for the other two methods, it was difficult in this region to compare errors. One way of solving the problem would have been to iterate between the values of the semi-enalytic methods. However, it was thought faster to write a short programme which evaluated the desired function values by inputing the coefficients of the exponentials. The corresponding function values from the Step-by-Step process were also input and the deviation and percentage deviation between the numerical methods agains both Picards method and Perturbation were worked out.

- 60 -

The deviation and percentage deviation were as below :

The errors obtained are shown in graphs 9 to 14, the grouping of the parameters being the same as in results graphs. Graphs 9, 11 and 13 show the percentage deviation after the maximum while graphs 10, 12 and 14 show the true deviation. Only the errors for a = 50 were shown for Perturbation (the dotted curves in graphs 9 and 10) but for particular values of c the deviation and percentage deviation in these cases were the worst found. Because Perturbation and Picerd's method produce similar exponential solutions, as can be seen from graphs 9 and 10, were not plotted. Since the Perturbation solutions approximated to the true solution with less exponential it might be expected that its solution is less accurate. Assuming the numerical methods produce the plosest approximation, this appeared to be the case for all parameters.

In the curves of the solutions, it will be seen that there are graphs for $\underline{a} = 25$ but no error curves. It turned out that in Picard's Method, one of the coefficients became infinite for this value of \underline{a} and hence no solution could be found. For this parameter the values of \triangleleft and are respectively 5 and 20. In the last part of the procedure CONST of the pertinent programme we have that the coefficient

$$A[jj] := B[j] \times d / (a \times ((i-j+i)) \times f + (j-i) \times g)^{2}$$

$$= b \times ((i-j+i) \times f + (j-i) \times g) + c)$$

$$(f \equiv a, g \equiv B, d \equiv c, c \equiv b, b \equiv a, a = i)$$
(78)







- 63



- 6




- 66 -



The denominator of this equation is zero when f=5, g=20, i=4 and j=1. Thus, for this particular parameter and using this method, the solution can only be worked out to the first non-linear approximation (i.e. when i only goes up to the value 2).

By looking at the percentage deviation curves it is obvious that in the region beyond the maximum, the numerical and semi-analytic methods do not agree. This is presumably because, as in all series solutions expanded about a point, the solution will only be accurate within a certain region. Some idea of how the error behaves is found from an approximate enalytic solution to the differential equation outside upper boundary value. If we assume that y" is zero for the exponential decay, we have

$$ay' + by = cy^2$$

i.e.
$$t = a \int \frac{dy}{y(cy-b)} + k' = \frac{a}{b} \ln \frac{cy-b}{ky}$$

 $k, k' = constants$
 $y = -\frac{b}{k} = \frac{bt/a}{(1-\frac{c}{k}e^{-bt/a})}$ (79)

Thus if y is to have a valid exponential expansion

$$\frac{c}{k} = \frac{bt/a}{k} < 1$$
(80)

K is a constant which, since we are dealing with a region of the curve outside the boundary conditions, must be found from elsewhere. In an approximat way, the numerical solutions can satisfy this demand. Comparing K found from various numerical points, it is found that it stays as constant as can be expected since $y^{*} = 0$. See figure (14)

t	1.55	2.75	3.95	for	8	-	101
K	47.22	47.64	48.14	(c	-	50



Using an approximate value of K, the inequality (80) should determine the minimum value of t such that the expansion is valid. The fact that this is not the case is probably because the expansion, although of exponential form, is not the same as was derived for the solution. There is, however, a qualitative agreement between the error found and size of $ce^{bt/a}/K$. If <u>c</u> is increased, an increase in the error is found as would be expected in the above. Similarly if <u>s</u> is decreased, the error increases. This is not at first sight obvious since in decreasing <u>a</u>, the value of above exponential decreases, but it is found that K becomes smaller fast enough to swamp this effect.

Because the percentage deviations after the maximum were on average several orders of magnitude greater than the errors between zero and the maximum, the two regions could not be plotted on the same graph. The percentage deviations and deviations for the region between the boundary conditions are therefore shown on graphs (15) - (20). It is obvious comparing the deviation before and after the maximum that in the former case there is quite good agreement between the different techniques but not in the latter. To find if there was analytic basis for the errors found, the test for convergence for Picard's method was investigated. The convergence condition is easily found for the equation y'' = f(t,y) and it therefore had to be













generalised for the equation y'' = f(t,y,y'). The condition turned out to be

$$\begin{pmatrix} M + \frac{N}{\sqrt{e_i}} & \frac{de_i}{dt} \end{pmatrix} R^2 < 1 \\ M = \frac{\partial f}{\partial y} & N = \frac{\partial f}{\partial y},$$

(81)

where

.

e₁ = y₁ - y n = number of approximations

y, - first approximation to the solution

y = the analytic solution

R = upper limit - lower limit

When y" is not a function of y', the condition is very easy to apply, but no way was found of deriving any value for the function de_1/dt . The term $1/\sqrt{p}$ probably could however be ignored if n was large enough. If the equation being investigated $\frac{\partial f}{\partial y}$, has the value \underline{a} . Since this must be greater than 20, it is doubtful if the second term of the inequality (81) could be left out.

Since it would have taken up a very large amount of space to include the numerical results for all the parameters, it was decided only to include, for each method, one set of results. For all methods the parameters included are for a=50, c=-40. These are shown in Appendix 1.

3.3. Conclusion

Indealing with this problem, it has become obvious that, in

fitting an exponential series, such as taken here, to the differential equation, the solution will only be accurate within the boundary values. Since the solution is still exponential in form it is possible that an adaption of Collocation or least Squares could give an exponential series solution with different coefficients and exponents. This would probably be much more accurate outside the upper boundary condition.

It is unfortunate that the numerical method was unstable when a was close to zero, as the two results would have acted as a check on each other. An investigation of the difference between the analytic linear solutions and the programmed methods would, however, give some ides of the absolute error involved in computing those latter results. Although this was not analysed, in calculating a few points analytically, the exponential solutions in the linear cases seemed to be slightly more accurate than the purely numerical solutions (for the region before the maximum).

One of themain difficulties in solving this problem has certainly been fitting the upperboundary condition. Both in the numerical and semianalytic approaches, the condition $y(t_m) = 1$ had to be iterat d onto and, because of this, the solutions took longer to compute than they would have taken under more normal conditions.

- 77 -

78 . Graph Plot of Equation y"+5y'+100y=-40y2, from Procedure. Graph 21

APPENDIX 1

Numerical Results for Equation $y'' + 50y' + 100y = -40y^2$ for Methods:

- (1) Finite Difference
- (2) Step-by-Step
- (3) Picard
- (4) Perturbation

input parameters dy/dt,yXy and interval +50.0; +0.0015;

d ×

2456; 6374; 7106;	6000 6000000	7246; 8076; 0171; 4425;	58380 58380 58380		4080 2040 2040	62423 36893 441863 35143 35143
+0.9112 +0.9003 +0.8894	+0.8785	+0.8462 +0.8356 +0.8252	+0. 8046 +0. 7945 +0. 7845	+0.7747 +0.7555 +0.7555	+0.7277 +0.7277 +0.7187	+0.7098 +0.7011 +0.6925 +0.6840 +0.6840
+0.1140; +0.1185; +0.1230;	+0.1275 +0.1325 +0.1365	+0.1410	+0.1590 +0.1635	+0.1725	+0.1950; +0.1950;	+0.2 40 +0.2085 +0.2130 +0.2130
• • • • • • • •		ດັງດັງ - ລັດງ	••••••	• • • • • • •		
0000	- 50	82753	1010	5000 G	6000	00000000000000000000000000000000000000
+0.9148 +0.9039	+0.88213	+0.8498 +0.8391 +0.8286 +0.8182	+0.8080 +0.7978 +0.7878	+0.7779 +0.7586 +0.7586	+0.7309	+0.7128 +0.7040 +0.6953 +0.68688 +0.6785
+0.1125; +0.1170; +0.1215;	to.1260; to.1305; to.1350;	+0.1395 +0.1440; +0.1485; +0.1530;	+0.1575; +0.1620; +0.1665;	+0.1710 +0.17555 +0.1800		+0. 2025 +0. 2025 +0. 2115 +0. 2115
+0.1125; +0.9148 +0.1170; +0.9039 +0.1215; +0.8931	+0.1260; +0.8822 +0.1305; +0.8713 +0.1350; +0.8605	+0.1395; +0.8498 +0.1440; +0.8391 +0.1485; +0.8286 +0.1530; +0.8182	+0.1575; +0.8080 +0.1620; +0.7978 +0.1665; +0.7878	+0.1710; +0.7779 +0.1755; +0.7682 +0.1800; +0.7586 +0.1845; +0.7402	+0.1890; +0.7399 +0.1935; +0.7397 +0.1980; +0.7217	+0.2025; +0.7128 +0.2070; +0.7040 +0.2115; +0.6953 +0.2160; +0.6868

+0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.8858 +0.75533 +0.75533 +0.7553 +0.7553 +0.7553 +0.755333 +0.755333 +0.755333 +0.755333 +0.755333 +0.755333 +0.755333 +0.75533

input parameters dy/dt,yXy,interval and limit
+50.0; -40.0; +0.0150; +1.9200;

×

9150 2400 -0-**?** ÷;;;;;;;;;; **•** +1. +0.6702 +0.5941 +0.5941 +0.5941 +0.5941 +0.5941 +0.3035 +0.3767 +0.3035 +0.3035 +0.2459 +0.2459 +0.1277 +0.1277 +0.1277 +0.1277 +0.1277 +0.1277 +0.4500 +0.5400 +0.5400 +0.5850 +0.6750 +0.8100 +0.8500 2250 2700 3150 3600 7650 8100 9000 4050 9450 0066 9 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ ç ·0+ 9 +0.2550 +0.3450 +0.3450 +0.3450 +0.4350 +0.4350 +0.5700 +0.5700 +0.6600 +0.7500 +0.7950 +0.8400 +0.8850 9300 +0.2100 values **•** 9 3 and

+0.57335 +0.57335 +0.57335 +0.57335 +0.57335 +0.25360 +0.25360 +0.25355 +0.25360 +0.25360 +0.25355 +0.25360 +0.25360 +0.25355 +0.25355 +0.25082 +0.27082 +0.

1		1		1				1	1			'	1	'			'						1		
+0.1028:	+0.0932	+0.0845;	+0.0767;	+0, 0696;	+0.0632;	+0.0574;	+0.0521;	+0.0474;	+0.0430;	+0.0391;	+0.0355;	+0.0323;	+0.0294;	+0.0267;	+0.0243;	+0.0221;	+0.0201;	+0.0183;	+0.0166;	+0.0151;	+0.0138;	+0.0125;	+0.0114;	+0.0104;	
+1,0200:	H1.0650;	H.1100;	H1.1550;	H1.2000;	H1.2450;	+1.2900;	H1.3350;	H1.3800;	+1.4250;	+1.4700;	H1.5150;	+1.5600;	+1.6050;	+1.6500;	+1.6950;	+1.7400;	+1.7850;	+1.8300;	F1.8750;	+1.9200;	+1.9650;	+2.0100;	+2.0550;	+2.1000;	

																			00	00	00			00
O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	O	0	0	O	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	O	O
LO	õ	In	Õ	5	Õ	S	0	LA	O	S	O	In		5	0	5	0	5	Õ	5	O	In	0	S
3	00	N	1-	-	0	0	5	5	+	00	3	2	N	0		5	O	=	0	m	00	N	2	-
0	0	-		N	N	3	3	m	+	+	S	5	0	0	2	2	00	00	00	5	0	O	0	
	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	C1	N	N
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+

+0.0963 +0.0963 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0792 +0.0793 +0.0792 +0.0776 +0.076

successive numbe	r of iterations	4; 10			
input parameters +50.0; -40	dy/dt,yXy,upper 0.0; +2.2000;	limit,interva +0.0015;	l and approximat 2;	ion	
coefficients +8.6090 m -1; +1.9396 m -1; +6.5566 m -2;	-2.7134 n +0; +1.2961 n +0; +3.0323 n -1;	-5.3424 m -2; +4.7721 m -2; -1.0487 m -2;	-1.869610 -45 +8.565510 -55	-2.462710 -73	
X and Y values					
+0,0000;	+0.0000 0000;0+	+0.0015;	+0.0815 1365;	+0.0030;	+0.1571
+0.0045;	+0.2272 2524;	+0.0060;	+0.2922 1199;	+0.0075;	+0.3524
+0,0090;	+0.4082 1396;	+0.0105;	+0.4598 6214;	+0.0120;	+0.5076
+0.0135;	+0.5518 7246;	+0.0150;	+0. 5927 4391;	+0.0165;	+0.6305
+0.0180;	+0.6653 6300;	+0.0195;	+0.6975 2137;	+0.0210;	+0.7271
+0.0225;	+0.7544 5888;	+0,0240;	+0.7795 6985;	+0.0255;	+0.8026
+0.0270;	+0.8238 2253;	+0.0285;	+0.8432 3271;	+0.0300;	+0.8609
+0.0315;	+0.8772 2491;	+0.0330;	+0.8920 2436;	+0.0345;	+0.9054
+0.0360;	+0, 9177 1948;	+0.0375;	+0.9287 9141;	+0.0390;	+0.9387
+0.0405;	+0.9477 8094;	+0.042	+0.9558 4151;	+0.0435;	+0.9630
+0.0450;	+0.9694 1628;	+0.0465;	+0.9750 4648;	+0.0480;	+0.9799
+0.0495;	+0.9842 5390;	+0.0510;	+0,9879 2526;	+0.0525;	+0.9910
+0.0540;	+0:9936 1546;	+0.0555;	+0.9957 1074;	+0.0570;	+0.9973
+0.0000;	+0.9985 7385;	+0.0600;	+0.9994 0374;	+0.0615;	+0.9998
+0.0630;	+1,0000 0000;	+0.0645;	+0.9998 1673;	+0.0660;	+0.9993
+0.0675;	+0.9986 0088;	+0.0690;	+0.9976 0916;	+0.0705;	+0.9963
+0.0720;	+0.9949 5023;	+0.0735;	+0.9933 1617;	+0.0750;	+0.9914
+0.0765;	+0.9895 1355;	+0.0780;	+0.9873 7188;		

......

•••	10	10	10	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	-0	5
079	100	259	349	130	529	510	709	799	889	979	690	159	249	339	429	519	609	660	789	879	969	050	149
0	9	0+	4	-0-	-0+	+0.	+0.	-0+		-	+1.	+	+		+	-+	-+	+1.				24	evi t

0.4	100	100	007	00		667	60		00			001	eer	00	0 0	0.07	00				001	00	
5	110	in	LA	10	S	LO	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	LA	LO	5	5	LO	In	LA	5	In	5
O	O	101	0	O	5	O	5	0	O	O	0	O	0	0	0	O	5	O	0	5	0	O	0
0	O	00	1	0	S	==	3	N	-	0	O	00	1	0	IN	-	3	N	-	0	0	00	1
-	-	N	0	t	In	0	M	00	0	õ	0	-	N	m	+	IN	0	1	00	O	S	O	
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	N	N
4	1	-	T	1	1	1	T	1	T	+	+	1		1	1		-1-		1		1		

0	5	N	0	~	00	N	1	5	0	0	0	3	5	0	3	N	\mathfrak{m}	+	4	0	3	0	
N	00	5	O		N	00	t	O		1	00	m	0	Õ	-	=	00	3	0	10	3		O
N		0	LA	0	0	3	O	5	3	0	00	2	0	S	+	m	N	01			-		0
5	2	LO	1	3	N	N			-	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
																							٠
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Q	Q	0	Q	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
+	+	+		+	+	+		+	+	+	+	-			+	+	+	+				-	+

00000000000	
MOV- 0000-010	- MM FUU JOOD - MM FI
- 01 m = = 1010 - 00	-000-01001-000-00
0000000000	0 0 0

+0.0150

d iterations		1571 2068; +0.0060; +0.2922 1496; 5076 6541; +0.0150; +0.7795 7636; 7271 6921; +0.0240; +0.7795 7636; 9507 9141; +0.0240; +0.7795 7636; 9709 7792; +0.0240; +0.7795 7636; 9709 7792; +0.0510; +0.9879 2635; 9709 7792; +0.0510; +0.9879 2635; 9709 7792; +0.0510; +0.9976 971; 9715 0214; +0.0690; +0.9976 0971; 9774 8564; +0.0870; +0.9873 7650; 9774 8564; +0.0870; +0.9873 7650; 9774 8564; +0.0870; +0.9976 971; 9774 8564; +0.0870; +0.971; 8359;	8824 0963; +0.1560; +0.8118 1696; 6880 3954; +0.2460; +0.6349 9779; 5435 9628; +0.2360; +0.6349 9779; 4351 6115; +0.3360; +0.6349 9779; 4351 6115; +0.4260; +0.4049 9683; 2864 2958; +0.5160; +0.3282 7091; 2864 2958; +0.6060; +0.2677 8944;
limit, interval an 0.0030; 3;		+0.00300 +0.02100 +0.02300 +0.02300 +0.02300 +0.02300 +0.02300 +0.02400 +0.02300 +0.02400 +0.023000 +0.02300 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0200 +0.0000 +0.0000 +0.0000 +0.0000 +0.0000 +0.0000 +0.0000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.00000 +0.000000 +0.00000000	+0. 1260; +0. 2160; +0. 3960; +0. 4860; +0. 5760; +0.
dy/dt,yXy,upper 0; +2.2000; (-2.9167 ± +0; -4.1340 ± -2; +3.7604 ± -1; +2.5191 ± -2;	 +0.0000 0000 +0.4082 1808 +0.6653 6922 +0.9177 2437 +0.9694 1887 +0.9936 1594 +0.9929 9972 +0.9826 7523 +0.9659 3500 	+0.9532 1950; +0.7468 2295; +0.5870 5322; +0.4680 7910; +0.3772 9154; +0.3065 4049;
input parameters +50.0; -40.	coefficients +9.1167 ¹⁰ -1; +2.4684 ¹⁰ -2; +1.8792 ¹⁰ +0; -9.7899 ¹⁰ -5; -2.5867 ¹⁰ -1;	X and Y values +0.0000 +0.0180 +0.0270 +0.0270 +0.02450 +0.02450 +0.0270 +0.0270 +0.0270 +0.0270 +0.0270 +0.0270 +0.0270	+0.0960 +0.1860 +0.3660 +0.3660

+10.8160+10.8160+10.99600+11.75600+11.75600+11.75600+11.75600+11.75600+11.75600+12.07600+12.07600+10.0806000+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.080600+10.0806000+10.0806000+10.0806000+10.0806000+10.0806000+10.0806000+10.080000000

16911394139413941394139413940095100951003700037000370003700037000194001942222222222222222

6130 6483 6483 66599 98309	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	2112
1585 1308 0893 0613 0613 0613	0500 0347 0287 0287 0197 0197 0197	011250003
÷;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;		

2277777777777777

+0.1486 +0.1227 +0.1214 +0.0574 +0.0574 +0.0574 +0.0336 +0.0336 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326 +0.0326

...........

APPENDIX 2 -REFERENCES

- (1) Hartree, D.R.: Numerical Analysis. Oxford University Press.
- (2) Davis, H.T.: Introduction to Nonlinear Differential and Integral Equations. Dover Publications Inc.
 - (3) Spenceley, G.W. and R.M.:

Smithsonian Elliptic Functions Tables. Smithsonian Institution.

- (4) McLauchan, N.W.: Ordinary Non-linear Differential Equations. Oxford University Press.
- (5) Fox, L.: The Numerical Solution of Two-Point Boundary Problems. Oxford University Press.

APPENDIX 3 - PROGRAMMES

- (1) Finite Difference
- (2) Step-by-Step
- (3) Perturbation
- (4) Picard

140

INPUT PARAMETERS FOR FINITE DIFFERENCE PROGRAMME

a,b,c,d: coefficients of y,y,y and y respectively

- h: interval between points
- m: number of points to be calculated
- t: if graph plot is required then t:=1 else 0
- f: number of carriage returns required for graph plotter

D:II=1+1; If Y[1+1]=Y[1] then begin LLI=1; j:=1; If j=n-1 then begin UL:=n; goto F; end; E:j:=j+1; II Y[]+T]=Y[j] and J(n-1 and j=n-1 then UL:=n else UL:=j; F:Tor k:=LL step 1 until UL-1 do Tor m:=k+1 step 1 until UL-1 do begin if X[m](X[k] then begin CX1:=X[K]; X[k]:=X[m]; X[m]:=CX1; end; end; end; 1:=U1; end; 1T_1<n-1 then goto D; 1T_X[1]>1 then space(T0,X[1]-1); write text (T0,[.]); N:=0; for 1:=2 step 1 unt11 n do N:=0; for 1:=2 step 1 unt11 n do N:=0; for 1:=2 step 1 unt11 n do Degin m:=Y[1-1]=Y[1-1]=0 then begin N:=N+1; goto A; end else 1f m=0 then Degin 1TX[T]-X[1-1]=1 then gotoB else space(10,X[T])=X[T-1]-1); begin library A0, A6, A12; procedure GP(X,Y,n,s); value X,Y,n,s; integer n,s; real array X,Y; begin real srX, srY, XMIN,YMAX,XINC,YINC,CX1,CY1,X1,X2,LL,UL; integer 1, J,k,m,N; XMIN:=X[1]; X2:=X[1]; for 1:=2 step 1 until n do begin if X[1]>X1 then X1:=X[1]; for 1:=2 step 1 until n do begin if X[1]>X1 then X1:=X[1]; if X[1] end; XMIN:=X2; XINC:=(X1-X2)/10; sfX:=100/(X1-X2); for 1:= 1 step 1 until n-1 do for 1:= 1 step 1 until ndo begin 1rY[J]YY[1] then begin CY1:=Y[1]; Y[1]:=Y[J]; Y[J]:=CY1; CX1:=X[1]; X[1]:=X[J]; X[J]:=CY1; for 1:= step 1 until n do
begin X[1]:=entier((X[1]-XMIN)xsfX+0.5);
Y[1]:=entier(Y[1]xsfY+0.5); end; sTY:=s/(Y[1]-Y[n]); YMAX:=Y[1]; YINC:=(Y[1]-Y[n])/s;

begin k1:=a1/a3; k2:=a2/a3; A[2]:=Z[1]/a3; B[1]:=k2; A[2]:=Z[2]/a3-k2XA[1]; B[2]:=k1-k2XB[1]; real h,x,e,a,b,c,d,f,g,t,v,a1,a2,a3,k1,k2,w; Integer 1,m,n,k,p,q,r,j; open(10); open(20); n:=read(20); for p:=1 step 1 unt11 n do begin a:=read(20); b:=read(20); c:=read(20);d:=read(20); h:=read(20); m:=read(20); t:=read(20); f:=read(20); new Tine(10,2);
write text(10,[[c] Number*of*points*ignored*=]);
write(10,format([-ndd;ccc]),N); write text(i0,[input*parameters*dy/dt,yxy*and*interval[c]]); write(10,format([+nddd.d;]),b); write(10,format([sss+nddd.d;]),d); begin real array A,B,W,Z[T:m-1],D[1:7,1:m+1],X,Y[1:m+1]; If b=0 then begin w:=sqrt(c/a); for 1 :=2 step 1 until m+1 do begin X[1]:=X[1-1]+h; Y[1]:=sin(wxX[1]); end; end; end for r:=3 step 1 until m-1 do
Begin A[r]:=Z[r]/a3-K2XA[r-T]-k1XA[r-2];
B[r]:=-(k2XB[r-1]+k1XB[r-2]); A: end; end else For I:= 2 step 1 until m+1 do begin Y[1]:=0.1; X[1]:=X[1-T]+h; end; begin Tor 1:= 1 step 1 unt11 m-1 do
Z[1]:=Y[1+T]XY[1+Z]XnXhXd; q:=0;
a1:=a-bXh/2; a2:=cXhXh-2Xa; a3:=a+bXh/2; end else end else If bXb-4xaxc<0 then begin k1:=(2xaxsqrt(4xaxc-bxb))/b; k2:=exp{arctan(k1)/k1)/sin(arctan(k1)); w:=sqrt(4xaxc-bxb)/(2xa); k1:=-b/(2xa); for 1:=2 step 1 unt11 m+1 do begin X[1]:=X[1-T]+h; Y[1]:=k2xexp(k1xX[1])xsin(wxX[1]); B:write text(10, [.]); mew line(10,m); if X[1]>1 then space(10,X[1]-1);
write text (10,[.]);

end; exit2: end; close(10);close(20); end; end; q:=1; goto P; q:=1; goto P; ex1t1:write text(10,[X*and*Y*values[c]]); for 1:=1 step 1 until m+1 do for 1:=1 step 1 until m+1 do k:=k+2; for j:=(k+1)/2 step 1 until m-(k-3)/2 do D[K, j]:=D[k-1, j]-D[k-1, j-1]; if k<6 then goto S; for 1:= 4 step 1 until m-2 do begin D[1,1]:=(D[4,1-1]+D[4,1])/2; D[2,1]:=(D[6,1-1]+D[6,1])/2; Q:r:=r+1;j:=r; if abs(B[r])>n-4 then $\overline{x:=(A[r]-1)/B[r]}$ begin h:=10xh/9 ; write text(10,[interval*altered[ccc]]); goto T; $\overline{x:=(A[r]-1)/B[r]}$ end; S Tor 1:=1 step 1:=0; k:=1; 1:=1+2: j:=j+1; if A[j]-B[j]xx>T then goto Q;
if j≠m-1 then goto R;
e:=x-4; Y[1]:=0; Y[2]:=x;
for 1:=1 step 1 until m-1 do
begin W[1]:=A[1]-B[1]xx;
v:=abs(W[1]-Y[1+2]); if v>e then e:=v; T:=0 begin write(T0,format([6s+ndd.dddd;]),X[1]); write(10,format([sss+d.ddddsdddd;]),Y[1]); r:=r+1; if r/3=entier(r/3) then new line(10,1); end; new line(T0,5); if t=1 then begin for 1:=1 step Ter 1:=4 step 1 until m-2 do
Z[1]:=Z[1]+[D[1,1]+D[5,1]/2-D[2,1]/6-D[7,1]/15)/6; for j:=1/2 step 1 until m-1/2+1 do D[1, j]:=D[1-1, j+1]=D[1-1, j]; If q=1 then begin r:=0; goto exit1; end; for 1:=1 step 1 unt1 m-1 do begin Y[1+2]:=W[1]; Z[1]:=Y[1+1]XY[1+1]XhXhXd; Tabs(x)>1 then begin write text(10, [equation*unstable[coc]]); goto exit2; end; e>m-4 then goto P else ir 1:=1 step 1 until m+1 do D[1,1]:=Y[1]; 1 unt11 m+1 do X[1]:=-X[1]; GP(Y,X,m+1,f); end;

INPUT PARAMETERS FOR STEP-BY-STEP PROGRAMME

- a,b,c,d: coefficients of y,y,y and y respectively
 - h: interval between points
 - t: if graph plot is required then t:=1 else 0
 - p1,p2: initial function values from Finite Difference results
 - f: number of carriage returns required for graph plotter
 - w: initial t value corresponding to p1

end; write text(10,[input*parameters*dy/dt,yxy,interval*and*limit[e]]); write(10,format([sss+d.dddd;]),h); write(10,format([sss+d.dddd;occ]),mXh); write(10,format([sss+d.dddd;]),h); write(10,format([sss+d.dddd;occ]),mXh); X[1]:=Wi for 1:=Z step 1 until m+1 do X[1]:=X[1-1]+h; write(10,format([6s+ndd.ddds]]),X[1]); for 1:=1 step 1 until m+1 do begin write(10,format([6s+ndd.dddd;]),X[1]); r:=r+1; if r/3=entier(r/3) ifnen new line(10,1); end; new line(T0,5); if t=1 then begin for 1:=1 step 1 until m+1 do X[1]:=-X[1]; GP(Y,X,m+1,f); new line(10,5); end; new line(T0,5); begin 1:=2;
 K: 1:=1+1;
 Y[1]:=Y[1-1]XY[1-1]XK3-Y[1-1]XK2-Y[1-2]XK1;
 if Y[1-1]YY[1-2] and Y[1-1]>Y[1] then
 begin if Y[1-1]>.07 then gotoR else goto S;
 end else goto R;
 S:m:=1-1; end; close(10); close(20); end begin end;

"INPUT PARAMETERS FOR PICARD PROGRAMME

- a, b, c, d: coefficients of y, y, y and y respectively
 - L1: upper limit of integration
 - q: interval between points
 - 1: degree of appoximation required
 - sp: the ammount by which the point density after the maximum has to be decreased i.e. if every 10th point is required then sp=10



begin real a,b,c,d,f,g,q,L1,YM,AO,M,eps,const,k; integer m,n,p,r,s,N,l,u,1,j,W,sp,inc,h; open(10); open(20); p:=read(20); for r:=1 step 1 until p do
 begin a:=read(20); b:=read(20); c:=read(20); d:=read(20);
 L1:=read(20); g:=read(20); l:=read(20);sp:=read(20);
 write text(10, [successive*number*of*iterations]);
 P:h:=bxb-4xaxc; n:=entier(L1/q); s:=2000; N:=0;
 f:=(b-sqrt(h))/(2xa); g:=(b+sqrt(h))/(2xa);
 k:=f/g; AO:=1/(kt(k/(1-k))-kt(1/(1-k))); eps:=p-5; m:=2t1;
 begin real arrayA;B[1:m,1:m+1];X;Y[1:2000];x;y[0:30];
 A[1:1]:=AO;
 f(1):=0; AD:=0; A X[1]:=0; for h:=2 step i until s do X[h]:=X[h-1]+q; for inc:=1 step i until 1 do Begin w:=1; u:=2; y[1]:=A[1,1]; M:=2tinc; R:CONST(const,f,g,M,a,b,c,d,A,B); Q:A[1,2]:=-A[1,1]-const; N:=N+1; for h:=1 step 1 until 3 do end; end; end; const:=0; for 1:=2 step 1 until n do for j:=1 step 1 until 1+T do begin A[1, J]:=dxB[1, J]/(ax((1-j+1)xf+(j-1)xg) +c); const:=const+A[1, J]; end; for h:=3,h+1 while Y[h-2]<Y[h-1] and Y[h]>Y[h-1] do begin Y[h]:=0; for 1:=1 step 1 until M do for j:=1 step 1 until 1+1 do Y[h]:=Y[h]+A[1,j]Xexp(-((1-j+1)xf+(j-1)xg)XX[h]); end; B[k,1]:=sum; begin sum:=0 for 1:=3 step 2 until k+1 do end; for j:=1 step 1 until (1-1)/2 do for p:=1 step 1 until k-1+j do Tor p:=(1-1)/2 step 1 untilk-(1-1)/2 do
begin if k-p<t and p<t then
sum:=sum+A[p,(I+1)/2]XA[k-p,(1+1)/2];</pre> begin if K-p<t and p<t then sum:=sum+A[K-p,1-J+1]×A[p,J]×2;

end; end; new line(10,3); write text(10,[input*parameters*dy/dt,yxy,upper*limit, interval*and*approximation[e]]); write(10,format[[+nddd.d;]],b]; write(10,format([sss+nddd.d;]],d); write(10,format([sss-ndd;ccc]),1); write(10,format([sss+nddd.d;]],g); for1:=1 step 1 until 2f1 do for j:=1step 1 until 2f1 do for j:=1step 1 until 2f1 do for mitfe(10,format([ssidd.dddwind;]]),A[1,j]); write text(10,format([ssidd.dddwind;]]),A[1,j]); if j=1+1 then new line(10,1); write text(10,[x*and*Y*values[c]]); for m :=1 step 1 until s+9 do for mit teo 10, format([s+d.ddddi]]),X[m]); write(10,format([3s+d.ddddi]]),X[m]); if m/3=entier(m/3) then new line(10,1); for m:=s+10 step sp until n+1 do
begin write(T0,Tormat([0s+d.dddd;]),X[m]);
write(10,format([3s+d.ddddsdddd;]),Y[m]);
h:=h+1; if h/3=entier(h/3) then new line(10,1);
end; new line(T0,3);
end; close(10); close(20); end; new line(10,2); h:=0; begin for 1:=1 step 1 untilMdo
for j:=1 step 1 until It1 do
Y[h]:=Y[h]+A[1, j]Xexp(-((1-j+1)xf+(j-1)xg)xX[h]); AITKENROOT(w,x,y,eps); A[1,1]:=y[w]; if x[0]≠0 then goto Q; write(10,format([sss-ndd;]),N-1); begin Y[h+1]:=0; end; YM:=Y[h-1]; s:=h; x[w]:=YM-1; if u=2 then begin if YM-1>0 then y[0]:=-A[1,1]/(5xinc) else y[0]:=A[1,1]/(5xinc); u:=1; end; for 1:=1 step 1 until M do
for j:=1 step 1 until 1+T do
[T[h+1]:=Y[h+T]+A[1,J]xexp(-((1-j+1)xf+(j-1)xg)xX[h+1]);

INPUT PARAMETERS FOR PERTURBATION PROGRAMME

- a,b,c,d: coefficients of y', y', y and y' respectively
 - L1: upper limit of integration
 - q: interval between points
 - sp: the ammount by which the point density after the maximum has to be decreased i.e. if every 10th point is required then sp=10



gin real a,b,c,d,f,g,j,k,q,diff,L1,YM,AO; integer n,sp,p,r,s,t,h,N; open(10); open(20); p:=read(20); for r:=1 step 1 until p do begin a:=read(20); b:=read(20); c:=read(20); d:=read(20); L1:=read(20); q:=read(20); sp:=read(20); k:=bxb-4xaxc; n:=entier(L1/q); s:=n+1; N:=-1; t:=0; begin real array Z[1:25],X,Y[1:2000]; I:=(b-sqrt(K))/(2xa); g:=(b+sqrt(k))/(2xa); k:=f/g; AO:=1/(kT(k/(1-k))-kT(1/(1-k))); Z[25]:=AOx(g-f); X[1]:=0; for h:=2 step 1 until s Ar YfL1_vf2]:=AOx(g-f); :=0; for h:=2 step

R: CONST(a, b, c, d, f, g, AU, Z);

1 until s do X[h N:=N+1;
end;

end; new line(10,3);
write text(10, [X*and *Y*values[c]]);
for h :=1 step 1 until s+9 do
 begin write(10, format([6s+d.dddd;]),X[h]);
 write(10, format([3s+d.ddddsdddd;]),Y[h]);
 if h/3=entier(h/3) then new line(10,1);
 if n/3=entier(h/3) then new line(10,1);
 begin write(10,format([5s+d.dddd;]),X[h]);
 write(10,format([5s+d.ddddsdddd;]),X[h]);
 t:=t+1; if t/3=entier(t/3) then new line(10,1);
 inew line(10,6); Z[25]:=Z[25]X(1-d1ff); AC:=Z[25]/(g-f); AC:=Z[25]/(g-f); If abs(d1ff)>₂₀-5 then goto R; For h:=1 step 1 until h+1 do begin j:=X[h]; Y[h]:=Z[16]Xexp(-fXj)+Z[17]Xexp(-gXj)+Z[18]Xexp(-2XfXj) +Z[19]Xexp(-fXj)+Z[17]Xexp(-gXj)+Z[20]Xexp(-(f+g)Xj)+Z[21]Xexp(-3XfXj) +Z[22]Xexp(-3XgXj)+Z[20]Xexp(-(f+g)Xj)+Z[21]Xexp(-(2Xf+g)Xj); HZ[22]Xexp(-3XgXj)+Z[23]Xexp(-(f+2Xg)Xj)+Z[24]Xexp(-(2Xf+g)Xj); end; Tor h:=3,h+1 while Y[h-2]{Y[h-1] and Y[h]>Y[h-1] do begin j:=X[h+1]; +Z[16]xexp(-fxj)+Z[17]xexp(-gxj)+Z[18]xexp(-2xfxj) +Z[19]xexp(-2xgxj)+Z[20]xexp(-(f+g)xj)+Z[21]xexp(-3xfxj) +Z[22]xexp(-3xgxj)+Z[23]xexp(-(f+2xg)xj)+Z[24]xexp(-(2xf+g)xj); for h:=1 step 1 until 3 do
begin j:=X[h];
[16]xexp(-fxj)+Z[17]xexp(-gxj)+Z[18]xexp(-2xfxj)
+Z[19]xexp(-fxj)+Z[20]xexp(-(f+g)xj)+Z[21]xexp(-3xfxj)
+Z[22]xexp(-3xgxj)+Z[23]xexp(-(f+2xg)xj)+Z[24]xexp(-(2xf+g)xj); write text(10, [input*parameters*dy/dt, yxy, upper*limit, interval *and*iterations [c]]); write(10, format([+nddd.d;]), b); write(10, format([sss+nddd.d;]), d); write(10, format([sss+d.dddd;]), L1); write(10, format([sss-ddddd;]], d); write(10, format([sssndd;ccc]], N); write text(10, format([sssd.dddd;]], d); for h:=16 step 1 until24 do begin write(10, format([sss=d.dddd, +nd;]), Z[h]); if $h/2\neq$ entier(h/2) then new line(10, 1); end; write d1ff:=YM-1 end; YM:=Y[h-1] close(10); close(20); s:=h;